STATE OF MICHIGAN
BEFORE THE JUDICIAL TENURE COMMISSION

COMPLAINT AGAINST

Hon. Byron J. Konschuh

40% Circuit Court Docket No. 159088

255 Clay Street Formal Complaint No. 100

Lapeer, Michigan 48446

AMENDED FORMAL COMPLAINT

The Michigan Judicial Tenure Commission (“Commission”) has authorized
this Amended Complaint against Honorable Byron J. Konschuh (“respondent”),
judge of the 40" Circuit Court, County of Lapeer, State of Michigan, and directed
that it be filed. This action is taken pursuant to the authority of the Commission
under Article 6, Section 30, of the Michigan Constitution of 1963, as amended, and
MCR 9.200 ef seq.

1. Respondent is a judge of the 40% Circuit Court, County of Lapeer, State of
Michigan.

2. As a judge, respondent was and is subject to all the duties and responsibilities
imposed on him by the Michigan Supreme Court, and is subject to the
standards for discipline set forth in MCR 9.104 and 9.205.

3. Respondent was appointed to the bench of the 40" Circuit Court in Lapeer

County, Michigan, on or about March 25, 2013.
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11.

Respondent was sworn in as a judge of the 40" Circuit Court in Lapeer
County, State of Michigan, on April 8, 2013.

Respondent was admitted to the State Bar of Michigan in 1985.

As an attorney licensed by the State of Michigan, respondent was and still 1s
subject to the standards of conduct applicable to an attorney under MCR
9.103(A) and the Michigan Court Rules of Professional Conduct (“MRPC”).
Pursuant to MCR 9.205(B)(2), the Commission has jurisdiction over

respondent for conduct committed while respondent was a member of the

State Bar of Michigan.

COUNT 1
2016 CRIMINAL MISDEMEANOR CONVICTION

Paragraphs 1 through and including 7, alleged above, are incorporated by
reference as if fully stated herein.

On or about July 18, 2014, respondent was charged with five felony counts of
embezzlement by a public official over $50, in violation of MCL 750.175.
The charges were filed by Shiawassee County Prosecuting Attorney Deana
M. Finnegan, acting as a special prosecutor assigned by the Michigan Office
of the Attorney General.

People v Konschuh was filed in the 71-A District Court under case no. 14-

1779-FY.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Preliminary examination in People v Konschuh commenced on or about
September 24, 2014, before Shiawassee District Court Judge Terrance
Dignan. |
On or about October 15, 2014, respondent was bound over for trial, as
charged, to Lapeer County Circuit Court under case no. 14-012016-FH.
People v Konschuh was assigned for trial to Genesee County Circuit Court
Judge Geoffrey L. Neithercut.
The Genesee County Circuit Court case number assigned to People v
Konschuh was 14-36353-FH.
On or about March 8, 2016, respondent stipulated to Special Prosecutor
Finnegan filing an amended complaint/information in People v Konschuh.
The amended complaint/information included Count 6 - “Public Officer —
Failure To Account For County Money,” a misdemeanor, in violation of MCL
750.485.
Count 6 of the amended complaint/information alleged that respondent:

...being a person holding public office for the County of

Lapeer, who received money belonging to the County,

fajled to keep an accurate and perfect account of all such

money, by whom paid and for what purposes as directed

by the County Board of Commissioners; contrary to MCL
750.485. MISDEMEANOR: 90 days and/or $500.
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20.

On or about March 8, 2016, respondent signed and executed:

d.

“Plea Agreecment/Sentence Agreement” which specified that respondent
was pleading nolo contendere to Count 6 of the complaint/information,
to wit, “Public Officer — Failure to Account for County Money” in
violation of MCL 750.485;

«“Advice of Rights” plea form which advised respondent of the rights he
waived by entering a nolo contendere plea to Count 6 of the amended
complaint/information;

«Advice of Rights/Plea Agreement — People’s Exhibit No. 1,” which
specified in part that MCL 750.485 carried a maximum sentence of 90
days in jail/prison;

“Stipulation and Agreement Between the Parties.”

The “Stipulation and Agreement Between the Parties” provided, in part, that

during his tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney:

a.

Between 2009 and 2013, respondent raised funds from a bad check

diversion program called Bounce Back;
Between 2009 and 2013, respondent raised funds from the Law

Fnforcement Officers Regional Training Commission (“LEORTC”)

program (teaching fees);
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22.

23.

c. The total amount of the funds raised by the bad check diversion program
and the LEORTC program was approximately $1,802;

d. Respondent deposited the funds raised from Bounce Back and the
LEORTC into his personal checking accounts;

e. The funds respondent raised from the bad check diversion program and
the LEORTC program could be interpreted as public monies that would
require financial reporting.

On or about March 8, 2016, before the Hon. Geoffrey L. Neithercut,

respondent entered a nolo contendere plea to Count 6 of the amended

complaint/information.

In exchange for respondent’s nolo contendere plea to Count 6 of the amended

complaint/information, i.e., failure to account for county money under MCIL.

750.485, Special Prosecutor Finnegan dismissed Counts 1 through 5 of the

amended complaint/information, i.e., embezzlement by a public official over

$50, each count having been filed under MCL 750.175.

At the outset of the March 8, 2016, plea hearing, while respondent and his

counsel were present, Special Prosecutor Finnegan stated in open court:

It’s my understanding that, pursuant to the amended
information that was filed with the court, that Judge
Konschuh, Byron Konschuh, will be tendering a plea of
no-contest to an added Count Six of the information, that’s

public officer failure to account for public money. Upon
his plea to that charge we’re asking that the court delay

5
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25.

26.

27.

sentence for a period that the court sees fit.. .and at the end

of the delay period that count six charge, the misdemeanor

charge, would be dismissed with prejudice upon

successful completion of the terms of the delay which

would include restitution.
At the March 8, 2016, plea hearing, Judge Neithercut advised respondent that
the penalty for pleading to Count 6 “could involve a fine up to five-hundred
dollars [and] jail time up to ninety days.”
In accepting respondent’s nolo contendere plea to violating MCL 750.485,
Judge Neithercut relied on the transcripts of the September 24 and October
15, 2014, preliminary examination conducted in connection with Counts 1
through 5 of the amended complaint, i.e., “embezzlement by a public
official/officer,” each filed under MCL 750.175.
At the March 8, 2016, plea hearing, after accepting respondent’s nolo

contendere plea, Hon. Geoffrey M. Neithercut stated that he:

...accepts the plea and finds Mr. Konschuh guilty of count
six, failure to account for county money.

At the March 8, 2016, plea hearing, after Judge Neithercut accepted
respondent’s nolo contendere plea to Count 6 of the amended
complaint/information, Special Prosecutor Finnegan stated:

I think in a case where there is a misdemeanor plea

tendered at the circuit court level, a presentence

investigation should be done so that the Court is fully
‘nformed of this man’s history. I know it’s impeccable, but
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29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

I think that’s the protocol when a misdemeanor plea is
taken at circuit court.

At the March 8, 2016, plea hearing, the Hon. Neithercut decided to “follow
protocol” and to refer respondent to the Lapeer County Probation Department
for a presentence investigation and report.

At the sentencing hearing, conducted on or about March 31, 2016, as part of
the sentence agreement, Judge Neithercut delayed the sentencing for 90 days,
until July 1, 2016.

On or about July 1, 2016, People v Konschuh, Genesee case no. 14-0363 53-
FH/Lapeer case no. 14-012016, was dismissed with prejudice.

On or about February 19, 2018, respondent filed a “Motion for Entry of Order
Nunc Pro Tunc.”

In the February 19, 2018, motion respondent represented that on March 8,
2016, he did not plead to a misdemeanor under MCL 750.485 in People v
Konschuh, Genesee case no. 14-03653-FH/Lapeer case no. 14-012016-FH.
Respondent’s representation in the February 19, 2018, motion was false and
misleading.

In the February 19, 2018, motion respondent represented that on March 8,
2016, he entered a plea of nolo contendere “that there may be an interpretation

of MCL 21.44 that supports the argument that [respondent] should have



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

reported the collection of these funds to the State or other appropriate entity
for accounting purposes.”

Respondent’s claim/representation in the February 19, 2018, motion was false
and/or misleading.

In the February 19, 2018, motion respondent requested Judge Neithercut to
enter an “Order Nunc Pro Tune” to correct “5 mistake which, if not corrected,
falsely indicated that Byron J. Konschuh pled to a crime, the misdemeanor
known as MCL 750.485, which he clearly and objectively did not.”
Respondent’s representation that he did not plead to a crime was false and/or
misleading.

On or about March 5, 2018, following a hearing, Judge Neithercut denied
respondent’s Motion for Entry of Order Nunc Pro Tunc.

COUNT 11
FINANCIAL IMPROPRIETIES — HARTLAND/TRANSMODUS

Paragraphs 1 through and including 38, alleged above, are incorporated by

reference as if fully stated herein.

From January of 2001 until April 8, 2013, respondent served as the

Prosecuting Attorney for the County of Lapeer, State of Michigan.
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42.

43,

44.

As the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney respondent was a public
officer/public official and the chief law enforcement officer for Lapeer
County, State of Michigan.

As is detailed in this count and Counts I —~ ¥, below, during his tenure as
Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney respondent persistently obtained money
and benefits for himself, and obtained benefits for the staff of the prosecutor’s
office, to which, as he was well aware, he and the staff were not entitled.
Respondent obtained some of that money and some of those benefits through
false statements, misrepresentations, and forgery. After respondent became a
judge, when questioned by law enforcement or under oath about obtaining
that money and those benefits, respondent made numerous false statements to
conceal his impropricties, as detailed in Count VIII, below.

During his tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney respondent did
not open/create and did not direct anyone to open/create any savings/checking
accounts for and/or in the name of the Lapeer County Prosecutor’s Office
(“LCPO”).

During his tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecutor respondent did not
establish and did not direct anyone else to establish at the LCPO a non-
employee contributory “petty cash” account with a ledger showing the sources

of the funds therein and all expenditures for which the funds were used.



During respondent’s tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecutor, Lapeer County
operated under an “Adopted Accounting Procedures” policy regarding

“Grants, Contracts, and Agreements.”
The “Adopted Accounting Procedures for Lapeer County” provided, in part:

All Grants, Contracts and Agreements involving the
County, County Department, County Elected Official,
Appointed Department Head or Employee of the County
SHALL be reviewed and approved by the County Board
of Commissioners. All Revenues or Reimbursements
SHALL be deposited with the County Treasurers Office
per the Cash Receipting Procedures within 24 hours of
receipt. Cash receipts are all moneys which shall come
into the hands of any office of the County or an employece
or elected official of that office (including Cash, Check,
Debit/Credit, Electronic Transfer and ACH), through the
operation of County business or authority of that office.

(Emphasis in original)
The “Adopted Accounting Procedures for Lapeer County” policy included a

“CONTRACT, AGREEMENT PROCEDURE” which provided, in relevant

part, as follows:

(7) Before ANY Contract/Agreement is entered into,
the department SHALL prepare and submit the
contract to the Prosecuting Attorney for review.

(8) After review by the Prosecuting attorney, the
department SHALL prepare and submit a “Request
for Action” form to the Board of Commissioners
requesting authorization to enter into a
Contract/Agreement.

10



(9) The Board of Commissioners will review the
Contract/Agreement  and  the Prosecuting
Attorney’s  recommendations and make a
determination as to whether the County should enter
into the Contract/Agreement.

(10) If Contract/Agreement is authorized by the Board of
Commissioner (sic), the department SHALL obtain
the required signature (Board Chairman and
Contractor Representative) and present copies to the
Administration Office and the County Clerk.

(11) Any Revenues or Reimbursements from the
Contract/Agreement SHALL be deposited with the
County Treasurer’s Office per the Cash Receipting
Procedures with (sic) 24 hours of receipt.

48. The Lapeer County “Cash Receipts” policy also provided, in part, that:
All cash receipts SHALL be deposited with the County
Treasurers Office by 5:00 pm of every Monday through
Friday (except Holidays). Cash receipts are all moneys
which shall come into the hands of any office of the
County or an employee or elected official of that office
(including Cash, Check, Debit/Credit, Electronic Transfer

and ACH), through the operation of County Business or
authority of that office.

49. During respondent’s tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecutor various Lapeer
County departments, administrators, and/or the Board of Commissioners
submitted contracts to respondent for his review of compliance with county
policies, county exposure to any liability, and any expenditure of taxpayer

money. Respondent’s review of these contracts gave him familiarity with the

Lapeer County contract policy.

11
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Prior to December 2009 the LCPO utilized the services of Hartland Payment
Systems/Transmodus (“I'ransmodus”), a check collection company, to obtain
the dishonored funds for some of the I.CPO’s bad check cases.

Respondent entered into a verbal agreement and/or contract with Transmodus

in his capacity as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney.

Prior to or at the time of entering into the agreement/contract with

Transmodus, respondent did not comply with the “Adopted Accounting

Procedures for Lapeer County” in that:

a. Respondent failed to prepare and submit a “Request for Action” form to
the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners requesting authorization to
enter into a contract/agreement with Transmodus;

b. Respondent failed to obtain the required signature (Board Chairman and
Contractor Representative) and/or to present copies to the Administration
Office and the County Clerk;

c. Respondent failed to deposit any revenues or reimbursements from the
contract/agreement with Transmodus with the County Treasurer’s Office
per the Cash Receipting Procedures.

Prior to entering into and during the pendency of the agreement/contract with

Transmodus, respondent failed to notify any county officials/departments

about the Transmodus agreement and/or contract, including:

12
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55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

a. Lapecer County Controller/Administrator John Biscoe;

b. Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office;

C. Lapeer County Finance Department;

d. Lapeer County Board of Commigsioners.

The agreement/contract between the LCPO and Transmodus was in effect in
2008/2009.

Under the Transmodus agreement/contract, the LCPO referred select bad
check cases to Transmodus for collection before issuing criminal charges.

In the cases received from the LCPO, Transmodus added a $35 collection fee
to the face amount of each check.

On or about October 15, 2008, Cherri Ohenley issued check number 2278 in
the amount of $25.28, drawn on account no. 12079944, to the Past Tense
Country Store in Lapeer, Michigan.

Ms. Ohenley’s check no. 2278 was dishonored for non-sufficient funds.
Collection on Cherri Ohenley’s bad check no. 2278 was handled by

Transmodus.

In addition to the $25.28 face amount of check no. 2278, Transmodus added

a $35 collection fee.

13
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64.
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60.

67.

68.

On or about January 31, 2009, the LCPO received from Ms. Ohenley a
Western Union Money Order no. 09-021376243, dated January 31, 2009, n
the amount of $60.28.

The LCPO accepted Western Union Money Order no. 09-021376243 as
payment in full in the case involving check no. 2278.

Respondent took possession of Ms. Ohenley’s Western Union Money Order
no. 09-021376243.

Respondent failed to forward Ms. Ohenley’s money order no. 09-021376243
to the Lapeer County Treasuret’s Office.

On or about May 14, 2009, respondent cashed and deposited Ms. Ohenley’s
money order no. 09-021 376243 into his personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust
(“LCBT”) checking account no. 14069857,

From 2009 through and including 2013, respondent and his wife, Lorraine
Konschuh, were the sole account holders of the LCBT account no. 14069857.
Ms. Ohenley’s money order was not respondent’s personal property and he
had no right to deposit it into his personal account.

On or about May 15, 2009, respondent submitted or caused the submission of
a deposit advice form forwarding $45.28 of the $60.28 from Ms. Ohenley’s

money order to the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office for deposit into account

no. 701-000-271-003.

14
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70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

In 2008-2009 account no. 701-000-271-003 was a holding account set up by
Lapeer County for the payment of restitution to crime victims in criminal
cases generated by the prosecutor’s office.

The May 15, 2009, deposit advice designated the $45.28 as restitution for the
Past Tense Country Store, the complainant/victim in the Ohenley bad check
case.

On or about May 15, 2009, respondent signed and forwarded, or caused to be
forwarded, to the Lapeer County Finance Department an invoice voucher
requesting the payment of $45.28 in restitution to the Past Tense Country
Store in Lapeer County, Michigan.

Respondent failed to forward the remaining $15 from the Ohenley money
order no. 09-021376243 to the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.
Respondent did not submit, or direct the submission of, any invoice vouchers
requesting the Lapeer County Finance Department to forward the $35
collection fee, or any part thereof, to Transmodus.

COUNT 111
FINANCIAL IMPROPRIETIES - BOUNCE BACK

Paragraphs 1 through and including 73, alleged above, are incorporated by

reference as if fully stated herein.

15
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76.

77.

78.

79.

On or about December 31, 2008, respondent signed and entered into an
agreement/contract with Bounce Back, Inc. (“Bounce Back”) in his capacity
as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney.

Bounce Back replaced Transmodus as the collector of bad checks.

Prior to entering into the agreement/contract with Bounce Back, respondent:

a.  Did not prepare and/or submit a “Request for Action” form regarding the
Bounce Back contract to the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners;

b. Did not obtain permission and/or approval from the Lapeer County Board
of Commissioners to enter into a contract with Bounce Back;

c. Did not obtain permission and/or approval from Lapeer County
Controller/Administrator John Biscoe 1o enter into the contract with
Bounce Back.

The agreement/contract with Bounce Back became effective on or about

January 1, 2009, and continued through at least April 8, 2013.

Between 2008 and April of 2013, respondent:

2. Did not inform the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners of the
contract between Bounce Back and the LCPO;

b. Did not inform County Controller/Administrator John Biscoe of the

contract between Bounce Back and the LCPO.

16
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83.

84.

Under the terms of the contract/agreement with Bounce Back the check

enforcement program was to be known as the “Lapeer County Bad Check

Enforcement Program.”

Under the terms of the contract with Bounce Back:

a.  “Selected Offenders” were referred to Bounce Back for collection;

b. Bounce Back added a $40 “processing fee” to the face amount of each
check referred for collection;

c. Bounce Back paid the LCPO $5 from each “processing fee” they
received.

Between 2009 and April of 2013 the LCPO received approximately $1022

from Bounce Back, through approximately 43 checks, for the bad check cases

referred to Bounce Back.

Each check from Bounce Back, representing various aggregate sums of the

fee paid to the LCPO, was made payable to “Lapeer County Prosecuting

Attorney’s Office” or “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”

The checks the LCPO received from Bounce Back were not respondent’s

personal property and he had no right to deposit them into his personal

accounts.

17
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86.

Between 2009 and April of 2013, respondent:

a.

Did not notify/advise/inform the Lapeer County Board of
Commissioners that the LCPO was being paid a fee for every bad check
case referred to Bounce Back upon which Bounce Back collected;

Did not notify/advise/inform County Controller/Administrator John
Biscoe that the LCPO was being paid a fee for every bad check case
referred to Bounce Back upon which Bounce Back collected;

Did not notify/advise/inform the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office that
the LPCO was being paid a fee for every bad check case referred to

Bounce Back upon which Bounce Back collected.

Between January 1, 2009, and April 8, 2013, respondent:

Did not forward, nor direct anyone else to forward, to the Lapeer County
Treasurer’s Office any of the checks/funds the LCPO received from
Bounce Back;

Did not make and maintain, nor direct anyone else to make and maintain,
a copy of each check received by the LCPO from Bounce Back;
Directed the office managers, Cathy Strong and Leigh Hauxwell, to

deliver to respondent each of the checks received by the LCPO from

Bounce Back.

18
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8.

Between 2008 and April 8, 2013, respondent took possession of each check

the LCPO received from Bounce Back.

Between 2008 and April 8, 2013, respondent did not:

a.

Open/establish a savings/checking account in the name of the LCPO at

any banking institution for the checks/funds the LCPO received from

Bounce Back;

Did not request the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners, the

Treasurer’s Office, or the Finance Department to create/set up a special

line item account for the funds the 1LCPO received from Bounce Back;

Did not maintain any accounting/bookkeeping records of the following

inforrﬁation:

1. The date, number, and amount of each check the LCPO received from
Bounce Back;

7 The date each check from Bounce Back was cashed/deposited;

3. The banking institution that cashed/deposited each of the checks from
Bounce Back;

4. The number of the account the funds from cach check were deposited
into;

5. Any items and/or services each Bounce Back fee was used to

purchase, pay for, or reimburse.

19



89.

90.

91.

92.

93.

94.

95.

96.

1. Check No. 20633

On or about September 25, 2009, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 20633 in the amount of $60.

The funds in check no. 20633 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred to Bounce Back for collection.
Check no. 20633 was made payable to the “Lapeer County Prosecuting
Attorney’s.”

Respondent did not forward check no. 20633 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about October 8, 2009, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 20633 and deposited it into his personal Lapeer County Bank &
Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy and/or any record of check no.
20633 before cashing and depositing “t into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

7. Check No. 20705

On or about October 28, 2009, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 20705 in the amount of $25.

The funds in check no. 20705 represented some of the fees Bounce Back

collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

20
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98.

99.

100.

101.

102.

103.

104,

Check no. 20705 was made payable to the “Lapeer County Prosecuting
Attorney’s.”

Respondent did not forward check no. 20705 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about November 4, 2009, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 20705 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 20705 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank and
Trust checking account no. 14069857.

3. (Check No. 20810

On or about November 19, 2009, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 20810 in the amount of $23.19.

The funds in check no. 20810 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 20810 was made payable to the “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”

Respondent did not forward check no. 20810 or the funds therefrom to the

Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.
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106.

107.

108.

109.

110.

111.

112.

In November of 2009 respondent gave check no. 20810 to Assistant
Prosecuting Attorney (“APA”) Matt Funke to pay for a portion of a food and
beverage bill at Abruzzo’s Piano & Grill restaurant.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no 20705 prior to giving

it to APA Matt Funke.

4. Check No, 20926

On or about December 17, 2009, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 20926 in the amount of $32.82.
On or about December 17, 2009, APA Steve Beatty personally delivered

check no. 20926 to respondent.

The funds in check no. 20926 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 20926 was made payable to the “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 20926 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about January 19, 2010, respondent deposited the funds from check no.

20926 into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking

qccount no. 14069857,
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114.

115.

116.

117.

118.

119.

120.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 20926 before cashing

and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

5. (Check No. 21031

On or about January 25, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 21031 in the amount of $43.99.

The funds in check no. 21031 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 21031 was made payable to the “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 21031 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about February 18, 2010, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 21031 and deposited it into his personal Chase Bank
checking account no. 1602145615.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21031 before cashing
and depositing it in his personal Chase Bank checking account no.
1602145615.

On or about February 18, 2010, respondent and his wife Lorraine Konschuh

were the sole joint account holders of Chase Bank checking account no.

1602145615,
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122.

123.

124.

125.

126.

127.

128.

6. Check No. 21149

On or about February 17, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 21149 in the amount of $15.

The funds in check no. 21149 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 21149 was made payable to «“Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 21149 or the funds therefrom to the
ILapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about March 10, 2010, respondent wrote “Byron Konschuh Prosecuting
Attorney” and his initials on the back of check no. 21149 and deposited it into
his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County RBank & Trust checking account no.
14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21 149 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

7. Check No. 21256

On or about March 11, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 21256 in the amount of $55.14.

The funds in check no. 21256 represented some of the fees Bounce Back had

collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.
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130.

131.

132.

133.

134.

135.

136.

137.

Check no. 21256 was made payable to the “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 21256 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about March 25, 2010, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 21256 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank and Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21256 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank and
Trust checking account no. 14069857.

8 Check No. 21359

On or about April 8, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.
21359 in the amount of $20.

The funds in check no. 21359 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 21359 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 21359 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about April 27, 2010, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no 21359 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer

County Bank and Trust checking account no. 14069857.

25



138.

139.

140.

141.

142.

143.

144.

145.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21359 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank and

Trust checking account no. 14069857.

9, Check No, 21470

On or about May 6, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.
21470 in the amount of $30.

The funds in check no. 21470 represented some of the fees Bounce Back had
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 21470 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 21470 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about May 13, 2010, respondent deposited check no. 21470 in his and
his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no.
14069857,

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21470 before cashing
and depositing it in his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank and Trust
checking account no. 14069857.

10. Check No. 21588

On or about June 3, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.

21588 in the amount of $10.
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The funds in check no. 21588 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 21588 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 21588 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about June 28, 2010, respondent deposited check no. 21588 into
Independent Bank account no. 73 671992,

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21588 prior to cashing
and depositing it into Independent Bank account no. 73671992.

On or about June 28, 2010, respondent’s son, Colin Konschuh, was the only
account holder of Independent Bank account no. 7 3671992, with the sole right

to withdraw funds from the account.

| 11. Check No. 21700

On or about July 14, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.

21700 in the amount of $20.

The funds in check no. 21700 represented some of the fees Bounce Back

collected from bad check cases referred by the L.CPO.
Check no. 21700 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”

Respondent did not forward check no. 21700 or the funds therefrom to the

Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.
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On or about July 20, 2010, respondent cashed and deposited check no. 21700
into his personal PNC bank account no. 42-3-228-8064.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21700 before cashing
and depositing it into his personal PNC bank account no. 42-3-228-80064.

On or about July 20, 2010, respondent, his wife Lorraine Konschuh, and his
son Fthan Konschuh, were the account holders of PNC Bank account no. 42-

3-228-8064.

12. Check No. 21733

On or about August 12, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 21783 in the amount of $15.

The funds in check no. 21783 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 21783 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 21783 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about September 23, 2010, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 21783 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal

Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.
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Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21783 before cashing
and depositing it in his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

13. Check No. 21883

On or about September 10, 2010, the I.CPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 21883 in the amount of $42.62.

The funds in check no. 21883 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 21883 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 21883 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about September 23, 2010, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 21883 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21883 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

14. Check No. 21999

On or about October 13, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 21999 in the amount of $7.38.
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The funds in check no. 21999 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 21999 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 21999 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about October 27, 2010, respondent wrote “for deposit only” and signed
the back of check no. 21999 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 21999 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

15. Check No. 22106

On or about November 3, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 22106 in the amount of $10.

The funds in check no. 22106 represented some of the fees Bounce Back

collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.
Check no. 22106 was made payable to «“prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”

Respondent did not forward check no. 22106 or the funds therefrom to the

Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.
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On or about November 10, 2010, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 22106 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Chase Bank account no. 1602145615.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 22106 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Chase Bank account no.

1602145615.

16. Check No, 22228

On or about December 9, 2010, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 22228 in the amount of $25.

The funds in check no. 22228 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 22228 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 22228 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasuret’s Office.

On or about December 23, 2010, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 22228 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 22228 before cashing
and depositing into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.
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17. Check No. 22334

On or about January 18, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 22334 in the amount of $15.

The funds in check no. 22334 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 22334 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 22334 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about February 3, 2011, respondent deposited check no. 22334 into his
personal Chase Bank account no. 1602145615.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 22334 before cashing

and depositing it into his personal Chase Bank account no. 1602145615.

'On or about February 3, 2011, respondent and his wifc Lorraine Konschuh

were the joint account holders of Chase Bank account no. 1602145615.

18. Check No. 22452

On or about February 23, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 22452 in the amount of $15.

The funds in check no. 22452 represented some of the fees Bounce Back

collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 22452 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
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Respondent did not forward check no. 22452 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about March 16, 2011, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 22452 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 22452 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

19. Check No. 23533

On or about March 14, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 23533 in the amount of §5.

The funds in check no. 23533 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 23533 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 23533 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about March 29, 2011, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 23533 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer

County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

33



207.

208.

209.

210.

211.

212.

213.

214.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23533 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

20. Check No. 22601

On or about April 14, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.
22601 in the amount of $20.

The funds in check no. 22601 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 22601 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 22601 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about April 21, 2011, respondent deposited check no. 22601 into his
and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no.
14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 22601 before cashing
and depositing it in his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

21. Check No. 22700

On or about May 6, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.

22700 in the amount of $33.86.
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The funds in check no. 22700 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 22700 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 22700 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about June 1, 2011, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back of
check no. 22700 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 22700 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

22. Check No. 22790

On or about June 2, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.

22790 in the amount of $23.28.

The funds in check no. 22790 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.
Check no. 22790 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”

Respondent did not forward check no. 22790 or the funds therefrom to the

Iapeer County Treasurer’s Office.
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On or about June 27, 2011, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 22790 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 22790 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

23. Check No. 22940

On or about August 8, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.
22940 in the amount of $55,

The funds in check no. 22940 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 22940 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 22940 or the funds therefrom to the
Iapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about August 18, 2011, respondent deposited check no. 22940 into his
and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no.
14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 22940 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.
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24. Check No, 23042

On or about September 8, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 23042 in the amount of $20.

The funds in check no. 23042 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 23042 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 23042 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about September 26, 2011, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 23042 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23042 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

25. Check No. 23154

On or about October 6, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 23154 in the amount of $25.

The funds in check no. 23154 represented some of the fees Bounce Back

collection from bad check cases referred by the L.CPO.

Check no. 23154 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
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Respondent did not forward check no. 23154 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about October 17, 2011, respondent deposited check no. 23154 into his
and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no.
14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23 154 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

26. Check No. 23259

On or about November 2, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 23259 in the amount of $25.

The funds in check no. 23259 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 23259 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 23259 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about November 22, 2011, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 23259 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal

Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.
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Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23259 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

27. Check No. 23391

On or about December 2, 2011, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 23391 in the amount of $27.30.

The funds in check no. 23391 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 23391 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 23391 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about December 16, 2011, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 23391 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23391 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857,

78. Check No. 23609

On or about January 23, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 23609 in the amount of $11.85.
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The funds in check no. 23609 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 23609 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 23609 or the funds therefrom to the
Iapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about February 1, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 23609 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23609 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust
checking account no. 14069857.

29. Check No. 23681

On or about February 8, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 23681 in the amount of $25.85.

The funds in check no. 23681 represented some of the fees Bounce Back

collected from bad check cases referred by the L.CPO.
Check no. 23681 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”

Respondent did not forward check no. 23681 or the funds therefrom to the

Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.
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On or about February 23, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 23681 and deposited it into Lapeer County Bank & Trust
checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23681 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

30. Check No. 23818

On or about March 8, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.
23818 in the amount of $25.

The funds in check no. 23818 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 23818 was made payable to «“prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 23818 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about March 15, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 23818 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23818 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.
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31. Check No. 23915

On or about April 4, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.
23915 in the amount of $20.

The funds in check no. 23915 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 23915 was made payable to “progecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 23915 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about May 7, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back of
check no. 23915 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23915 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

32. Check No. 24034

On or about May 3, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.

24034 in the amount of $10.

The funds in check no. 24034 represented some of the fees Bounce Back

collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 24034 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
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Respondent did not forward check no. 24034 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about May 25, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 23154 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23034 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust
checking account no. 14069857.

33. Check No. 24138

On or about June 13, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.

24138 in the amount of $25.

The funds in check no. 24138 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 24138 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 24138 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about June 19, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 24138 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer

County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.
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Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 24138 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

34, Check No, 24237

On or about July 18, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.
24237 in the amount of $20.

The funds in check no. 24237 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 24237 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 24237 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about July 31, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 24237 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 24237 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

35. Check No. 24321

On or about August 7, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.

24321 in the amount of $15.65.
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The funds in check no. 24321 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 24321 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 24321 or the funds therefrom to the
ILapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about August 15,2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 24321 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 24321 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust
checking account no. 14069857.

36. Check No. 24434

On or about September 7, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 24434 in the amount of $9.98.

The funds in check no. 24434 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.
Check no. 24434 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”

Respondent did not forward check no. 24434 or the funds therefrom to the

Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.
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On or about September 24, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 24434 and deposited it into his personal Lapeer County
Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 24434 before cashing
and depositing it into his and bis wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

37. Check No. 24546

On or about October 10, 2012, the 1,CPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 24546 in the amount of $35.

The funds in check no. 24546 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 24546 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 24546 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about October 29, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 24546 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 24546 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.
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38. Check No. 24639

On or about November 7, 2012, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 24639 in the amount of $10.

The funds in check no. 24639 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 24639 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 24639 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about November 20, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 24639 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 24639 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

39. Check No. 24773

On or about December 11,2012, the L.CPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 24773 in the amount of $5.
The funds in check no. 24773 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 24773 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
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Respondent did not forward check no. 24773 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about December 20, 2012, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 24773 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal
Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857,

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 24773 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

40. Check No. 24871

On or about January 2, 2013, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check

no. 24871 in the amount of $25.

The funds in check no. 24871 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 24871 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 24871 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about January 17, 2013, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the
back of check no. 24871 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal

Lapeer County Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.
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333.

334.

335.

336.

337.

338.

336.

340.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 24871 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

41. Check No. 24989

On or about February 19, 2013, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check
no. 24989 in the amount of $50.

The funds in check no. 24989 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.

Check no. 24989 was made payable to “Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 24989 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.

On or about March 5, 2013, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back
of check no. 24989 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer
County Bank & Trust checking account 1o. 14069857.

Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 23989 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust

checking account no. 14069857.

42. Check No. 5087

On or about March 6, 2013, the LCPO received from Bounce Back check no.

5087 in the amount of $35.
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341.

342.

343.

344.

345.

346.

347.

The funds in check no. 5087 represented some of the fees Bounce Back
collected from bad check cases referred by the LCPO.
Check no. 5087 was made payable to “prosecuting Attorney’s Office.”
Respondent did not forward check no. 5087 or the funds therefrom to the
Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.
On or about April 2, 2013, respondent wrote “for deposit only” on the back of
check no. 5087 and deposited it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County
Bank & Trust checking account no. 14069857.
Respondent did not make and keep a copy of check no. 5087 before cashing
and depositing it into his and his wife’s personal Lapeer County Bank & Trust
checking account no. 14069857.
Respondent cashed check no. 5087 after he was appointed to the bench of the
40th Circuit Court in Lapeer, Michigan.

COUNT 1V

FINANCIAL IMPROPRIETIES
LEORTC/CITY OF LAPEER FEES

A. LEORTC Teaching Fees

Paragraphs 1 through 346, alleged above, are incorporated by reference as if

fully stated herein.
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348.

349.

350.

351.

352.

353.

In September of 2011 and again in September of 2012, APA Cailin Wilson
provided legal instruction at training sessions/seminars sponsored by the Law
Enforcement Officers Regional Training Commission (“LEORTC”).
Respondent did not participate in the September 2011 or September 2012
training sessions/seminars.

APA Wilson provided the September 2011 and September 2012 legal
‘nstructions on a weekday between the hours of 8:30 am and 5:00 pm.

APA Wilson did not take vacation, sick, or compensatory time from her
position at the LCPO to prepare and/or provide the legal instruction at the
LEORTC training sessions/seminars in September of 2011 and September of
2012.

APA Wilson used Lapeer County Prosecutor’s Office equipment and
supplies, including but not limited to a laptop computer, copiers, legal pads,
pens, and highlighters, to prepare for, and use during, the September 2011 and
September 2012 LEORTC training sessions/seminars.

On or about October 11, 2012, APA Wilson submitted to Lapeer County,
pursuant to respondent’s directive, a reimbursement voucher/request for the
mileage expense she incurred in connection with the September 2012

LEORTC Genesee County Corrections Academy.
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354.

355.

356.

357.

358.

On or about October 11, 2012, respondent signed/approved APA Wilson’s
reimbursement invoice voucher in the amount of $65.10.

On or after October 11, 2012, Lapeer County issued check no. 269448 for
$65.10, made payable to APA Wilson as reimbursement for the mileage
expense in connection with the September, 2012, LEORTC Genesec County
Corrections Aéademy.

The LCPO received the following payments for APA Wilson’s legal
instruction at the LEORTC training sessions/seminars in September of 2011

and September of 2012:

4. On or about October 13, 2011, the LCPO received from LEORTC check
no. 14954 in the amount of $300;

b. On or about October 5, 2012, the LCPO received from LEORTC check
no. 15338 in the amount of $480.

Check nos. 14954 and 15338 were made payable to the “Lapeer County

Prosecutor’s Office.”

With respect to check nos. 14954 and 15338, respondent:

4 Failed to forward either check to the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office,;

b. Failed to request the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners, the Lapeer
County Finance Department, or the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office to

create/set up a special line item account for the funds from either check.
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359.

360.

361.

Respondent cashed and deposited the funds from check nos. 14954 and 15338

into his and his wife’s personal checking/savings account no. 14069857 at the

Lapeer County Bank & Trust.

Respondent did not report/declare the $300 from check no. 14954 or $430

from check no. 15338 as income on his personal state and/or federal tax

returns.

Between 2001 and 2011, respondent cashed and deposited into his personal

savings/checking accounts numerous other checks issued by the LEORTC for

legal instruction provided by Ms. Wilson and/or other APAs at training

sessions/seminars/legal updates. These included the following:

4 Check no 9270 in the amount of $200 for a training session/seminar/legal
update conducted in or about June 2001;

b. Check no. 9652 in the amount of $400 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about March 2002;

c. Check no. 9957 in the amount of $200 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about September 2002;

d. Check no. 10389 in the amount of $400 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about May 2003;

o. Check no. 10913 in the amount of $400 for a ftraining

session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about March 2004;
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Check no. 11182 in the amount of $400 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about September 2004;
Check no. 11485 in the amount of $400 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about March 2005;

Check ‘no. 11923 in the amount of $300 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about March 2006;

Check no. 12089 in the amount of $300 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about September 2006;
Check no. 12435 in the amount of $300 for a training
session/seminat/legal update conducted in or about September 2007;
Check no. 12700 in the amount of $300 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about March 2008;

Check no. 13454 in the amount of $300 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about March 2009,

Check no. 13756 in the amount of $300 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about September 2009;
Check no. 14275 in the amount of $200 for a training
session/seminat/legal update conducted in or about July of 2010;

Check mno. 14746 in the amount of $350 for a training

session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about April of 2011;
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P.

Check no. 14827 in the amount of $100 for a training

session/seminar/legal update conducted in or about June of 2011.

362. Each of the training sessions/seminars/legal updates listed in paragraph 361

363.

364.

above were held on a weckday between the hours of 8:00 am and 5:00 pm.

The LCPO APAs who conducted the training sessions/seminars/legal updates

listed in paragraph 361 above did not take any vacation, sick, or compensatory

time from their positions at the LCPO to prepare and/or provide the legal

instruction.

With respect to checks from the training sessions/seminars/ legal updates listed

in paragraph 361:

a.

Respondent did not forward any of the above-listed checks or any of the
funds therefrom to the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office;

Respondent did not give any of the proceeds from the above-listed checks
to the APAs or other individuals who conducted the training
sessions/seminars/legal updates;

Respondent did not request the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners,
the Lapeer County Finance Department or the Lapeer County Treasurer’s
Office to create/set up a special line item account within the LCPO

budget for the funds from any of the above-listed checks.
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365.

366.

367.

368.

With respect to the checks/funds listed in paragraph 361 respondent:
o Did not make and/or maintain copies and/or any other record of the checks
the LCPO received from the City of Lapeer;
b. Did not maintain any records of the expenditures for which the funds from
cach of the City of Lapeer checks were used.
Respondent cashed and deposited into his personal savings/checking account
checks issued by the LEORTC for legal instruction he, with other LCPO
APAs, had provided prior to his tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecutor.
These include the following:
a. Check no. 8751 in the amount of $200 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in October 2000;
b. Check no. 8870 in the amount of $400 for a training
session/seminar/legal update conducted in December 2000.
The training sessions/seminars/legal updates listed in paragraph 366 above
were held on a weekday between the hours of 8:00 am and 5:00 pm.
The LCPO APAs, including respondent, who conducted the training
sessions/seminars/legal updates listed in paragraph no. 366 above did not take
any vacation, sick, or compensatory time from their positions at the LCPO to

prepare and/or provide the legal instructions.
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369.

370.

371.

372.

With respect to the training sessions/seminars listed in paragraph 366 above:

a. Respondent did not forward any of the above-listed checks or any of the
funds therefrom to the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office;

b. Respondent did not give any portion of the proceeds from the above-
listed checks to the APAs or other individuals who conducted/assisted in
the training sessions/seminars/legal updates;

c. Respondent did not request the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners,
the Lapeer County Finance Department of the Lapeer County Treasurer’s
Office to create/set up a special line item account within the LCPO
budget for the funds from the checks listed in paragraph 360.

With respect to the checks/funds listed in paragraph 366 respondent:

a. Did not make and/or maintain copies of the checks the LCPO received

from the City of Lapeer;

b. Did not maintain any records of the expenditures for which the funds from

cach of the City of Lapeer checks were used.

B. City of Lapeer Fees

Paragraphs 1 through 370, alleged above, are incorporated by reference as if

fully stated herein.

Between 2001 and 2009 respondent cashed and deposited into his personal

savings/checking account checks issued by the City of Lapeer to the LCPO
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373.

374,

for court appearances made by the LCPO APAs in district court on City of

Lapeer criminal cases.

The court appearances by the LCPO APAs on City of Lapeer district court

cases took place on weekdays between 8:30 am and 5:00 pm.

With respect to the checks/funds the LCPO received from the City of Lapeer

for the LCPO APAs covering City of Lapeer criminal cases in district court,

respondent:

a. Did not forward any of the checks to the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office;

b. Did not notify Lapeer County Administrator John Biscoe, the Lapeer
County Finance Department, the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office, or the
Lapeer County Board of Commissioners that the LCPO was receiving
funds for the LCPO APAs making court appearances oh behalf and/or in
place of the City of Lapeer city attorneys;

c. Did not request the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners, the County
Administrator, the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office, or the Lapeer
County Finance Department to create/sct up a special line item account for

the funds the LCPO was receiving from the City of Lapeer.
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375.

376.

377.

378.

379.

With respect to the checks/funds the LCPO received from the City of Lapeer

for the LCPO APAs covering City of Lapeer criminal cases in district court,

respondent:

a. Did not make and/or maintain copies or any records of the checks the
LCPO received from the City of Lapeet;

b. Did not maintain any records of the expenditures for which the funds from
cach of the City of Lapeer checks were used.

Between 2001 and 2009 respondent did not report/declare the City of Lapeer

funds, which he had cashed and deposited into his personal savings/checking

account, as income on his state and/or federal tax returns.

COUNT V
IMPROPER REIMBURSEMENTS

Paragraphs 1 through 376, alleged above, are incorporated by reference as if

fully stated herein.

Beginning in 2012 respondent submitted improper and/or fraudulent voucher

requests to the Lapeer County Finance Department.

Respondent’s voucher requests sought reimbursement for items/events

including, but not limited to:

a.  Christmas luncheons for the LCPO staff;
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380.

381.

382.

383.

384.

385.

386.

b. Secretary Day/Administrative Assistant Day celebration luncheons for
the LCPO staff;

c. Donuts provided as weekly refreshments to the LCPO staff.

The above-listed items were not subject o reimbursement under the Michigan

Department of Treasury guidelines.

A. Christmas Luncheon 2011

On or about December 16, 2011, the LCPO staff attended a luncheon at the
Blind Fish Restaurant in Lapeer, Michigan.

The bill/tab of the December 11, 2011, luncheon, which respondent covered
with his personal credit card, was $174.70, of which $40 represented gratuity.
On or about December 20, 2011, respondent signed and submitted an “invoice
voucher” to the Lapeer County Finance Department seeking reimbursement
of $§125.25 for the 2011 LCPO staff luncheon.

Respondent’s voucher sought reimbursement for the December 16, 2011,
LCPO staff luncheon from Prosecuting Attorney General Fund account no.
101-229-815-000.

In his December 20, 2011, invoice voucher respondent represented that the
$125.25 expense was incurred during a “Legal Updates/Training Luncheon.”

The December 16, 2011, luncheon was a Christmas luncheon for the LCPO

staff and not a legal update/training session.
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387.

388.

389.

390.

391.

392.

393,

Respondent’s representation in the December 20, 2011, invoice voucher was
false and misleading.

Based on respondent’s false representation in the December 20, 2011, invoice
voucher, Lapeer County issued a check made payable to respondent in the

amount $125.25.

B. Secretary Day Luncheon, 2012

On or about April 25, 2012, the LCPO staff attended a
Secretary/Administrative Assistant tuncheon at the Blind Fish restaurant in
Lapeer, Michigan.

The cost of the April 25, 2012, Secretary/Administrative Assistant luncheon
for the LCPO staff was $217.21, of which approximately $33 represented
gratuity.

Respondent covered the bill/tab of the 2012 Secretary/Administrative
Assistant luncheon with his personal credit card.

On or about April 25, 2012, respondent signed and submitted to the Lapecr
Court Finance Department an invoice voucher secking reimbursement of
$174.61 for the 2012 Secretary/ Administrative Assistant luncheon from
Prosecuting Attorney General Fund account no. 101-229-815-000.

In the April 25, 2012, invoice voucher respondent represented that the

$174.61 expense was incurred for a “Staff Development Luncheon.”
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394.

39s5.

396.

397.

398.

399.

400.

The April 25, 2012, luncheon was the LCPQ’s celebration of
Secretary/Administrative Assistant Day and not a staff development
Juncheon.

Respondent’s representation in the April 25, 2012, invoice voucher was false
and misleading.

Based on respondent’s false representation in the April 25, 2012, invoice
voucher Lapeer County issued a check made payable to respondent for

$174.61.

Christmas Luncheon 2012

During respondent’s tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney, the
LCPO served as the Lapeer County Corporation Counsel in a forfeiture matter
regarding property located at 3780 Lake Lapeer Road, Metamora (Alba
Township), Lapeer County, Michigan.

APA Steve Beatty represented the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office in the
civil foreclosure matter involving the 3780 Lake Lapeer Road property.

APA Steve Beatty did not take any vacation, sick, or compensatory time from
his position at the LCPO to represent the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office in
the 3780 Lake Lapeer Road foreclosure case.

The forfeiture matter involving 3780 Lake Lapeer Road was resolved in or

about July of 2012.
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401.

402.

403.

404.

405.

406.

407.

As part of the resolution, Corelogic Tax Services, LLC, a tax escrow
company, agteed to pay $105,000 to Lapeer County.

The $105,000 was to be in two checks, one in the amount of $5,000 and the
other in the amount of $100,000.

On or about August 7,2012, the LCPO received from Corelogic Tax Services,
[.LC, check no 3000181215 drawn on First American Trust FSB in the
amount of $5,000 as compensation for Jegal services provided by APA Steve
Beatty.

On or about August 7, 2012, the LCPO received from Corelogic Tax Services
check no. 3000181216, drawn on First American Trust FSB in the amount of
$100,000.

Check no. 3000181216 in the amount of $100,000 represented “Tax Sale
Repurchase” of the property located at 3780 Lake Lapeer Road, Metamora
(Alba Township), Lapeer County, Michigan.

Between August 7, 2012, and September 18, 2012, respondent altered or
directed the alteration of Corelogic Tax Services check no. 3000181215,
changing the name of the payce from “Lapeer, County of” to “Lapeer, County
of — PROSECUTOR.”

Between August 7, 2012, and September 18, 2012, respondent altered or

directed the alteration of Corelogic Tax Services check no. 3000181216,
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408,

409.

410.

411.

412.

413.

414.

changing the name of the payee from “Lapeer, County of” to “Lapeer, County
of — TREASURER.”

On ot about September 18, 2012, respondent forwarded or directed the
forwarding of check nos. 3000181 15 and 3000181216 to the Lapeer County
Treasurer’s Office.

Pursuant to respondent’s request, between September and November 2012
Lapeer County created a new special activities line-item account in the Lapeer
County/LCPO budget.

The newly created account was identified as “Law Enforcement Corporation
County Employee Training” account no. 267 162 657 010.

Funds from Corelogic Tax Services check no. 3000181215 in the amount of
$5,000 were deposited into “Law FEnforcement Corporation County Employee
Training” account no. 267 162 657 010.

The Law Enforcement Corporation County Employee Training account was
to be used for expenses the LCPO incurred in training its APAs to handle
future civil matters on behalf of the Treasurer’s Office.

On or about December 14, 2012, the LCPO staff attended a luncheon at the
Blind Fish restaurant in Lapeer, Michigan.

The cost of the December 14, 201 2, luncheon, which respondent covered with

his personal credit card, was $180.66 of which $34 represented gratuity.
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415.

416.

417.

418.

419.

420.

421.

422.

423.

On or about December 17,2012, respondent signed and submitted an invoice
voucher to the Lapeer County Finance Department seeking, reimbursement of
the cost of the 2012 Christmas tuncheon from the Law Enforcement
Corporation Counsel Employee Training account no. 267 162 657 010.

In the December 17, 2012, invoice voucher respondent represented that the
December 14, 2012, expense was incurred in connection with “training.”
Shortly after December 17, 2012, County Administrator/Controller John
Biscoe contacted respondent by phone regarding his December 17, 2012,
reimbursement voucher.

Mr. Biscoe questioned whether the December 14, 2012, luncheon was a
“training” session or a holiday celebration.

Mr. Biscoe advised respondent that a holiday luncheon expense could not be
submitted for reimbursement.

During his conversation with Mr. Biscoe respondent insisted the December
14, 2012, luncheon was a “training” session and not a holiday luncheon.

The December 12, 2012, luncheon was not a training session but a Christmas
funcheon for the LCPO statt.

Respondent’s representation in his December 17, 2012, invoice voucher was

false and misleading.

Respondent’s verbal representations to Mr. Biscoe were false and misleading.
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424. Based on respondent’s false representation in the December 17, 2012, invoice

425.

426.

427,

428.

429.

430,

voucher and his false verbal representations to Mr. Biscoe, the county issued

a check for $146.66 (excluding gratuity) made payable to respondent.

COUNT V1
IMPROPER DEMEANOR

Paragraphs 1 through 424, alleged above, are incorporated by reference as if
fully stated herein.

In 2016, Ed and Bonnie Oyster and their son, Samuel, resided at 1476 Roods
Lake Road in the City of Lapeer/Mayfield Township, Lapeer County,
Michigan.

At all relevant times David Richardson was an attorney and a member of the
State Bar of Michigan practicing law in Lapeer County.

In the November 2016 clection, Mr. Richardson was a write-in candidate for
the 40" Circuit Court against the incumbent, Hon. Nick Holowka.

During the November 2016 election, respondent made telephone calls on
behalf of Mr. Richardson and his candidacy for the 40" Circuit Court.

Prior to the 2016 November election respondent placed numerous “Dave

Richardson for Circuit Court” campaign lawn signs on various properties in

Lapeer County.
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431.

432.

433.

434.

435.

436.

Sometime prior to the afternoon/evening of Tuesday, October 4, 2016,
respondent placed a “Dave Richardson for Circuit Court” campaign lawn sign
on or near the property owned by Mr. and Mrs. Oyster, i.e. 1476 Roods Iake
Road, City of Lapeer/Mayfield Township, Lapeer County, Michigan.
Respondent did not discuss the placement of Mr. Richardson’s campaign lawn
sign with Ed Oyster, Bonnie Oyster, or Samuel Oyster before placing it on or
near their residence located at 1476 Roods lake Road, City of
]apeer/Mayfield Township, County of Lapeer, State of Michigan.

On or about October 5, 2016, respondent learned that the campaign lawn sign
he had placed on or near the property owned by Mr. & Mrs. Oyster had been
removed.

On or about October 5, 2016, respondent went to the Oyster residence located
at 1476 Roods Lake Road, City of Lapeer/Mayfield Township, Lapeer
County, Michigan.

Bonnie Oyster greeted respondent at her front door. Respondent questioned
her about the “Richardson for Circuit Tudge” campaign law sign, its removal,
and its current location.

Mrs. Oyster advised respondent that she did not know who removed the “Dave

Richardson for Circuit Court” campaign lawn sign.
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437.

438.

439.

440.

441,

442.

443,

444,

Using a confrontational and irate tone of voice respondent continued to
question Mrs. Oyster about the “Richardson for Circuit Judge” campaign lawn
sign and its removal.

Respondent refused to accept Mrs. Oyster’s assurances that she had no
knowledge as to the identity of the person who had removed the campaign
lawn sign.

Mrs. Oyster advised respondent that, out of courtesy, other individuals asked
her, her husband’s, or their son’s permission to put up their candidates’
campaign lawn signs on the corner of the property/residence.

Respondent displayed an aggressive, belligerent, and/or arrogant attitude
towards Mrs. Oyster.

Respondent told Mrs. Oyster that he had placed the “Richardson for Circuit
Judge” campaign lawn sign on the corner of the property.

Respondent told Mrs. QOyster that no one had his permission to remove the
“fucking” campaign lawn sign from where he had placed it.

While respondent was addressing Mrs. Oyster, her son Samuel Oyster
approached the front door and stood at his mother’s side.

Respondent told Mrs. Oyster and Samuel Oyster that he hated Judge Nick

Holowka and that Judge Halowka had been a “pain in [his] ass for 30 years.”
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445.

446.

447,

448.

449,

450.

451.

452.

As a result of respondent’s conduct on the afternoon/evening of October 5,

2016, Mrs. Oyster became frightened and upset and began to cry.

COUNT VII
FAILURE TO DISQUALIFY

Paragraphs 1 through and including 445, alleged above, are incorporated by
reference as if fully stated herein.

On or about July 21, 2014, respondent was placed on administrative leave
from his judicial position on the bench of the 40" Circuit Court in Lapeer,
Michigan.

Respondent remained on administrative leave until April 6, 2016 when he

resumed his judicial duties.

A. David Richardson

David Richardson is a member of the State Bar of Michigan and is practicing

law in the Lapeer County courts.

David Richardson was respondent’s law school classmate.

In the November 2016 election, M. Richardson was a write-in candidate for
the 40® Circuit Court, running against the incurnbent, Hon. Nick Halowka.
Respondent encouraged Mr. Richardson to become a candidate for the 40

Circuit Court in the November 2016 election.
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453,

454.

455.

456.

During the November 2016 election campaign, respondent had conversations

with various individuals. During those conversations respondent:

a. Bxpressed his support for Mr. Richardson’s bid for the 40% Circuit Court;

b. Expressed his opposition to Hon. Nick Holowka’s reelection to the 40t
Circuit Court;

c. Became critical and hostile to individuals who expressed their support for
the Hon. Nick Holowka’s reelection to the 40™ Circuit Court;

d. Discussed placing Mr. Richardson’s campaign lawn signs on various
public and private properties.

During the November 2016 election, respondent placed numerous “Dave

Richardson for Circuit Court” lawn signs on various properties in Lapeer

County.

After April of 2016, Mr. Richardson appeared before respondent in numerous

criminal/traffic and civil cases in which Mr. Richardson was the attorney of

record.

The criminal/traffic and civil cases referred to in paragraph 455 above include

but are not limited to those listed in Appendix A, which is included with and

made a part of this Amended Formal Complaint.
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457.

458.

459.

460.

461.

462.

In the cases listed in Appendix A in which Mr. Richardson was the attorney

of record, respondent:

4. TFailed to disqualify himself based on his relationship with Mr. Richardson;

b. Failed to provide a timely and materially complete on-the-record
disclosure of his relationship with Mr. Richardson;

c. Failed to obtain a written waiver of his disqualification based on his
relationship with Mr. Richardson.

B. Michael Sharkey

Michael Sharkey is a member of the State Bar of Michigan and is practicing
law in the Lapeer County courts.

Mr. Sharkey was respondent’s attorney in People v Byron J. Konschuh,
Genesee case no. 14-03653-FI/Lapeer case no. 14-012016-FH, beginning
when the case was filed on or about July 18,2014.

Mr. Sharkey represented respondent at least through March of 2016.

Mr. Sharkey’s legal fee for representing respondent in People v Byron J.
Konschuh, Genesee case no. 14-03653-FH/Lapeer case no. 14-012016-FH,
exceeded $400,000.

As of the date of this Amended Formal Complaint, all or a large portion of

Mr. Sharkey’s legal fee is still outstanding.
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463.

A64.

465.

466.

467.

After April of 2016, respondent, as a judicial officer of the 40™ Circuit Court,

presided over civil cases in which Mr. Sharkey was the attorney of record.

In the civil cases over which respondent presided after April of 2016, in which

Mr. Sharkey was the attorney of record, respondent:

a. Failed to disqualify himself based on his personal/professional rejationship
with Mr. Sharkey.

b. Failed to provide timely and materially complete disclosure of his
personal/professional relationship with Mr. Sharkey.

c. Failed to obtain a written waiver of his disqualification based on his
personal/professional relationship with Mr. Sharkey.

The civil cases referred to in paragraphs 463 and 464 include but are not

Jimited to those listed in Appendix B, which is included with and made a part

of this Amended Formal Complaint.

In 2015 and 2016 respondent discussed with and encouraged several Lapeer

County attorneys, including Mr. Sharkey, to declare their candidacy for the

Office of Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney against Timothy Turkelson,

who was the incumbent.

Timothy Turkelson was a prosecution witness in People v Konschuh, Genesee

case no. 14-03653-FH/Lapeer case 1no. 14-012016-FIL
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Mr. Sharkey declared his candidacy for the Office of Lapeer County
Prosecuting Attorney on or about April 19, 2016.

Beginning in April of 2016 respondent openly supported Mr. Sharkey in his
campaign for the Office of the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney.
Beginning in April of 2016, respondent solicited locations for Ms. Sharkey’s
campaign lawn signs in Mr. Sharkey’s bid for the Office of the Prosecuting
Attorney.

Beginning in April of 2016 respondent placed Mr. Sharkey’s campaign lawn
signs at various locations around Lapeer County.

In November of 2016 Mr. Sharkey was elected as the Lapeer County
Prosecuting Attorney and took office on or about January 2, 2017.

Between April and December 31, 2016, respondent presided, as a judicial
officer, over criminal cases in which Mr. Turkelson was the attorney ofrecord.
In the criminal cases over which respondent presided between April and
December 31, 2016, in which Mr. Turkelson was the attorney of record,
respondent:

a. Failed to disqualify himself based on the fact that Mr. Turkelson was the

prosecution’s witness in People v Konschuh, GGenesee case 1o. 14-03653-

FH/Lapeer case no. 14-01 2016-FH;
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b. Failed to provide a timely and materially complete on-the-record
disclosure of the fact that Mr. Turkelson was the prosecution’s witness in
People v Konschuh, Genesee case no. 14-03653-FH/Lapeer case no. 14-
012016-FH.

c. TFailed to obtain a written waiver of his disqualification based on the fact
that Mr. Turkelson was the prosecution’s witness in People v Konschuh,
Genesee case no. 14-03653-TFIl/Lapeer case no. 14-012016-FH.

Between April and December 31, 2016, respondent presided, as a judicial

officer of the 40" Circuit Court, over criminal cases in which Mr. Sharkey

was the defense attorney of record.

In the criminal cases over which respondent presided between April and

December 31, 2016, in which Mr. Sharkey was the defense attorney of record,

respondent:

a. Failed to disqualify himself based on his personal/professional relationship
with Mr. Sharkey;

b. Failed to provide a timely and materially complete disclosure of his
personal/professional relationship with Mr. Sharkey;

c. Failed to obtain a written waiver of his disqualification based on his

personal/professional relationship with Mr. Sharkey.
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misdemeanor/traffic cases and more than 50 criminal felony cases issued by

the L.CPO in which Mr. Sharkey was the Prosecuting Attorney of record.

In the criminal misdemeanor/traffic and felony cases in which Mr. Sharkey

was the Prosecuting Attorney of record since January 2, 2017, respondent:

a. Failed to timely disqualify himself based on his personal/professional
relationship with Mr. Sharkey;

b. Failed to provide a timely and materially complete disclosure of his
personal/professional relationship with Mr. Sharkey;

c. Failed to obtain a written waiver of his disqualification based on his
personal/professional relationship with Mr. Sharkey.

Since taking office as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney, Mr. Sharkey

appeared before respondent in some of the criminal felony and/or

misdemeanor/traffic cases filed by the LCPO.

In the criminal felony and/or misdemeanor/traffic cases in which Mr. Sharkey

appeared before respondent since January 2, 2017, respondent:

a. Failed to timely disquality himself pased on his personal/professional

relationship with Mr. Sharkey;

b. Failed to provide a timely and materially complete disclosure of his

personal/professional relationship with Mr. Sharkey;
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c. Failed to obtain a written waiver of his disqualification based on his
personal/professional relationship with Mr. Sharkey.

The criminal cases referred to in paragraphs 477 through and including 480

above include but are not limited to cases listed in Appendix C, which is

included with and made a part of this Amended Formal Complaint.

COUNT VI
MISREPRESENTATIONS

Paragraphs 1 through and including 481, alleged above, are incorporated by

reference as if fully stated herein.

A. Misrepresentations to Michigan State Police

On or about April 29, May 1, May 7, and May 22, 2014, respondent was
interviewed by Michigan State Police (“MSP”) Det/Sgt. Mark Pendergraff.
At the time of the interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraft, respondent was a
judge on the bench of the 40" Circuit Court in Lapeer County, State of
Michigan.

During the interview conducted on or about April 29, 2014, Det/Sgt.
Pendergraff advised respondent that he was investigating the manner in which
respondent handled and spent funds/money that the LCPO received from

Bounce Back during respondent’s tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecuting

Attorney.
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486. During his interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraff, respondent represented that

487.

he had used the funds the LCPO had received from Bounce Back and other

sources to pay for and/or reimburse himself for various office expenditures,

including but not limited to:

a. The LCPO staff’s lunches/meals after select trials;

b. Lunches for, or to give lunch money to, crime victims during trials;

c. Flowers, cards, water, and/ot cakes for various social and family events of
the LCPO staff members;

d. Plaques for retiring L.CPO staff members;

e. Plaques for retiring police officers.

Respondent’s representations to Det/Sgt. Pendergraff were false and/or

misleading, in that:

a. The trial victory/completion lunches/meals were paid for, on a rotating
basis, by the LCPO APAs who attended them;

b. Crime victim meals were paid for with funds from the LCPO victims’
services unit;

c. Flowers, cards, and/or cakes for funerals, birthdays, and/or retirements of

the LCPO staff members were paid for by contributions from the LCPO

staff;
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d. Plaques for retiring LCPO staff members were paid for with contributions
from the LCPO staff;

e. Plaques for retiring police officers were paid for with contributions from
the LCPO staff.

During the interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraff, respondent represented that

he had spoken with other prosecuting attorneys who had contracted with

Bounce Back for their bad check cases about what they did with the stipends

they had received from Bounce Back.

Respondent’s representation to Det/Sgt. Pendergraff was false and/or

misleading.

During the interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraf, respondent represented that

other prosecuting attorneys had advised respondent that they used the

stipends/funds they had received from Bounce Back to pay for things for their

offices.

Respondent’s representation  to Det/Sgt. Pendergraff was false and/or

misleading.

During his interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraff, respondent represented that

the APAs who conducted various police and other training sessions/legal

updates retained a portion of the funds/money the LCPO received for said

training sessions/legal updates.
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Respondent’s representation to Det/Sgt. Pendergraff was false and/or
misleading.

During his interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraft, respondent represented that
he had appeared in the criminal district court cases on behalf of the City of
Lapeer.

Respondent’s representation was false and/or misleading in that since he had
become the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney, only the LLCPO APAs
appeared in criminal district court cases on behalf of the City of Lapeet.
During his interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraf, respondent represented that
during his tenure as the Lapecr County Prosecuting Attorney the LCPO APAs
retained a portion of the money the City of Lapeer was paying for their
appearances in district court criminal cases on behalf of the City of Lapeer.
Respondent’s representation to Det/Sgt. Pendergraff was false and/or
misleading.

During his interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraff, respondent represented that
during his tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney the county did
not pay his and/or the LCPO APAs’ bar dues.

Respondent’s representation to Det/Sgt. Pendergraff was false and/or

misleading.
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During his interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraff, respondent represented that
during his tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Aftorney he had spent
$1800 of his own money on water for the LCPO water cooler.

Respondent’s representation to Det/Sgt. Pendergraff was false and/or
misleading.

During his interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraff, respondent represented that
during his tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney the LCPO APAs
voted on how to spend the funds that the LCPb had received as teaching fees
from the LEORTC.

Respondent’s representation to Det/Sgt. 'Pendergraff was false and/or
misleading.

During his interviews with Det/Sgt. Pendergraff, respondent represented that
during his tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney the LCPO APAs
voted on how to spend the funds that the LCPO had received from the City of
Lapeer for court appearances in district court criminal cases.

Respondent’s representation to Det/Sgt. Pendergraff was false and/or

misleading,.
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B. Misrepresentations to the Judicial Tenure Commission and Qthers

1. Criminal Misdemeanor Conviction

During a November 15, 2017, deposition conducted in connection with
Konschuh v. Lapeer County, et al, Oakland County Circuit Court case nos.
2017-SC0045-SC and 2017-SC0046-5C, respondent represented that he did
not plead no contest to any type of a crime, including a misdemeanor.
Respondent’s testimony was false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 44 respondent represented that on March 8, 2016, he
plead “no contest to the allegation that there may be an interpretation of MCL.
21.44 that supports the argument that he should have reported the collection
of these funds to the State or other appropriate entity for accounting
purposes.”

That representation, in response to question no. 44, was false and misleading.
In his January 14, 2019, answers 10 the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 918, respondent represented that he “understood that
[in People v Konschuh] he was pleading only to MCL 21.44.7

That representation, in response to question no. 918, was false and misleading.
In his February 19, 2018, “Motion for Entry of Order Nunc Pro T unc,’

respondent claimed that on March 8, 2016:
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a. He did not plead to a misdemeanor under MCIL. 750.485 in People v
Konschuh, Genesee case No. 14-03653-FH/Lapeer case no. 14-012016-
FH;

b. He entered a plea of nolo contendere “that there may be an interpretation
of MCL 21.44 that supports the argument that [respondent] should have
reported the collection of [the Bounce Back and LEORTC] funds to the
State or other appropriate entity for accounting purposes.”

Respondent’s representations in his February 19,2018, motion were false and

misleading.

In the February 19, 2013, motion, respondent requested Judge Neithercut to

enter an “Order Nunc Pro Tunc” to correct “a mistake which, if not corrected,

falsely indicated that Byron J. Konschuh pled to a crime, the misdemeanor
known as MCL 750.485, which he clearly and objectively did not.”

Respondent’s representation in the February 19, 2018, motion was false and

misleading.

2. Financial Improprieties — Hartland/Transmodus

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question nos. 15, 18, and 67, respondent represented that during

his tenure as the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney he was not aware of
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Lapeer County’s “Adopted Accounting Procedures” and/or “Cash Receipts”
policies.

Respondent’s representations in response to questions 15, 18, and 67 were
false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question nos. 65, 66, 67, 68 and 69, respondent stated that the
LCPO agreement/contract with Transmodus was not a county contract.
Respondent’s representations in response to question nos. 65, 66, 67, 68 and
69 were false and misleading.

In his July 6, 2016, answers to the Commission’s request for comments, in
response to question no. 24k4, respondent stated thathe did not keep $15 from
Cherri Ohenley’s money order.

Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 24k4 of the July 6,
2016, request for comments was false and misleading.

In his February 8, 2017, answers 10 the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, n
response to question no 18h, respondent denied that he had failed to forward
$15 from Ohenley’s money order to the Lapeer County Treasurer’s Office.
Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 18h of the

Commission’s February 8, 2017, 28-Day Letter was false and misleading.
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In his February 8, 2017, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter in
response to question no. 18i respondent denied that he had failed to send or
cause to be sent, to Transmodus, their $35 collection fee.

Respondent’s representation in response 1o question no. 18i of the
Commission’s February 8, 2017, 28-Day Letter was false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter in
response to question nos. 110 and 111, respondent represented that he “gave
the equivalent of Sherry Ohenley’s money order to the Lapeer County
Treasurer’s Office to voucher to the appropriate parties.”

Respondent’s representations in response to question nos. 110 and 111 were

false and misleading.

3. Financial Improprieties — Bounce Back

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter in
response to question nos. 119, 120, 121, and 122 respondent stated that the
agreement/contract with Bounce Back was not a “county contract.”

Respondent’s representations in response to questions 119, 120, 121 and 122

were false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in

response to question nos. 123 and 129 respondent claimed that “Mr. Biscoe
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has acknowledged and testified that he was aware of [the contract between
Bounce Back and the LCPO].

Respondent’s representations in response to question nos. 123 and 129 were
false and misleading.

In his July 6, 2016, answers 10 the Commission’s request for comments, in
response to question no. 90, and in his January 14, 2019, answers to the
Comumission’s 28-Day Letter, in response (o question no. 140, respondent
denied ever directing LCPO Office Manager Leigh Hauxwell not to forward
any of the checks the LCPO received from Bounce Back to the Lapeer County
Treasurer’s Office.

Respondent’s representations in response to question no. 90 of the July 6,
2016, request for comments and question 140 of the January 14,2019, 28-Day
Letter, were false and misleading.

In his February 8, 2017, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 31, and in his January 14, 2019, answers to the
Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in response to question nos. 955 and 956,
respondent stated that he did not instruct the LCPO office managers, Cathy

Strong and Leigh Hauxwell, to deliver to him all checks the LCPO received

from Bounce Back to respondent.
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Respondent’s representations in response to question no. 31 of the February
8, 2017, 28-Day Letter and question nos. 955 and 956 of the January 14, 2019,
28-Day Letter were false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter in
response 10 questions 152, 160, 168, 184, 192, 200, 208, 216, 225, 236, 244,
252, 260, 268, 276, 284, 292, 300, 308, 316, 324, 332, 340, 348, 356, 364,
372, 380, 388, 396, 404, 412, 420, 428, 436, 444, 452, 460, 468, and 476,
respondent represented that at the time he deposited each check the LCPO had
received from Bounce Back into his and his wife’s personal checking account,
the funds in each check represented reimbursement for numerous and ongoing
office expenses that respondent had initially paid for.

Respondent’s representations in response to the above listed questions were
false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, on page
3, respondent represented that he had used the Bounce Back monies “to pay
for office expenses such as coffee, donuts, bottled water and other luncheons.”
Respondent’s representation was false and misleading.

In his July 6, 2016, answers 10 the Commission’s request for comments,

respondent included Tab C, which respondent claimed represented “a list of
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receipted and estimated expenses of which the Bounce Back funds defrayed a

portion.”

In a three-page document included with Tab C respondent claimed that since

becoming the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney he had incurred in excess

of $16,854.30 in out-of-pocket expenditures on the L.CPO.

Respondent’s representations in Tab C were false and misleading, in that:

a. Tab C includes expenditures purchased prior to respondent becoming the
Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney;

b. Tab C includes expenditures respondent did not pay for;

c. Tab C includes expenditures that are not proper governmental
expenditures;

d. Tab C includes expenditures that respondent was reimbursed for;

e. Tab C includes expenditures for coffee and cookies respondent had
purchased for his May 6, 2013, investiture, when he was no longer the
Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney.

In his April 23, 2018, answers to the Commission’s request for comments, in

response to question nos. 19d2 and 20d2, respondent represented that he did

not seek reimbursement from circuit court for the cookies and coffee he used

at his investiture because he provided the coffee and cookies to the

prosecutor’s office the day after the May 6, 2013, investiture.
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Respondent’s representations in response to question nos. 19d2 and 20d2 were
false and misleading.

In his July 6, 2016, answers to the Commission’s request for comments,
respondent represented, under Tab C, that between 2001 and 2008 he
spent/contributed $400 per year to the “Flower/Cake/Card Fund,” for a total
of $3200.

Respondent’s representation was false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 936, respondent stated that “when the
[flower/cake/card/water fund] did .not have sufficient funds, which occurred
every year, Judge Konschuh personally covered the costs.”

Respondent’s representation in response 1o question no. 936 was false and
misleading.

In his July 6, 2016, response to the Commission’s request for comments,
under Tab C, respondent represented that between August 2, 2002, and June
30, 2008, he had spent in excess of $1800 of his own money on water cooler
bilis for the LCPO.

That representation under Tab C was false and misleading.
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In his January 14, 2019, answers 10 the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question nos. 938, 939, and 940, respondent stated that the office
water fund did not have sufticient money to cover the water cooler service.
Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 938 was false and
misleading,.
In his May 2017 supplemental response to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter,
on page 2, and in his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day
Letter, in response to question nos. 957 through and including 961, respondent
represented that since the onset of the Bounce Back contract, he had incurred
“about $2,000” in out-of-pocket expenditures on behalf of the LCPO.
Respondent’s representations  in his supplemental response to the
Commission’s 28-Day Letter and in his January 14,2019, 28-Day Letter were
false and misleading, in that the items respondent listed as expenditures he
had incurred since the onset of the Bounce Back contract:
a. Include expenditures that were purchased before he bechne the Lapeer
County Prosecuting Attorney;
b. Include expenditures that respondent did not pay for;
c. Include expenditures that are not proper governmental expenditures;

d. Include expenditures that respondent was reimbursed for;
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e. Include expenditures that respondent incurred when he was no longer the

Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney.

4. LEORTC Teaching Fees

In his February 8, 2017, answers to the Commission’s December 14, 2016,
Request for Comments, on page 1, respondent stated that while the Hon.
Tustus Scott was the Lapeer County Prosecuting Attorney, he

...pocketed the fees for teaching, kept the funds paid by

the local municipalities for coverage of cases and treated

those funds not only as outside of MCL 129.11 but as his

own booty and a benefit to him personally as being the
prosecutor.

Respondent’s representation 1n the February 8, 2017, answers to the
Commission’s December 14, 2016, Request for Comments, was false and/or
misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 626, respondent represented that he had attended and
participated as a presenter/trainer in the entire session of the March 2008
“Legal Update with Emphasis on CSC” LEORTC training
session/seminat/legal update.

Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 626 was false and

misleading.
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In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 637, respondent represented that he had attended and
participated as a presenter/trainer in the entire session of the March 2009
“Computer Crime, Medical Marijuana, Open Carry, Search and Seizure”
LEORTC training session/seminat/legal update.

Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 637 was false and
misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 646 respondent represented that he had attended and
participated as a presentet/trainer in the entire session of the September 2009
«Gearch and Seizure, Child Advocacy — SANE/SART; Traffic Safety”
LEORTC training session/seminar/legal update.

Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 646 was false and
misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question nos. 656 and 658 respondent represented that he had
attended and participated as a presenter/trainer in the entire session of the July
2010 “Ignition Interlock law, Medical Marijuana, Datamaster, ARIDE,

Traffic Safety” LEORTC training session/seminar/legal update.
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Respondent’s representations in response to question nos. 656 and 658 were
false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers (o the Commission’s 28-Day Letter,
respondent represented, in response to question nos. 667 and 669, that he had
attended and participated as a presenter/trainer in the April 2011 “Heroin,
Identification  and Prevention/Enforcement” ~ LEORTC training
session/seminar/legal update.

Respondent’s representations in response to question nos. 667 and 669 were
false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers 10 the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 677 respondent represented that he had attended and
co-presented the entire session of the Jupne 2011 LEORTC training
session/seminar/legal update on medical marijuana.

Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 677 was false and
misleading.

5. Improper Reimbursements - 2011 Christmas Luncheon

In a December 20, 2011, invoice voucher submitted to the Lapeer County
Finance Department seeking a $125.25 reimbursement, respondent
represented that the expense was incurred in connection with a luncheon

provided at a December 16,2011, “Legal Update/Training.”
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Respondent’s representation ‘1 his December 20, 2011, invoice voucher was
false and misleading in that the December 16,2011, luncheon was a Christmas
luncheon for the I.CPO staff.
In his January 14, 2019, answers (o the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question nos. 794 and 795, respondent represented that the
December 16, 2011, luncheon was a legal update/training session rather than
a Christmas luncheon for the LCPO staff.
Respondent’s representations in response to question nos. 794 and 795 were
false and misleading.
In his January 14, 2019, answers (o the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 797 respondent stated that “Mr. Biscoe nor his stafl
ever informed Judge Konschuh that the [December 16, 2011, lunch] was not
a reimbursable expense.”
Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 797 was false and
misleading.
In his July 6, 2016, answers to the Commission’s April 14, 2016, request for
comments, in response to question no. 127 respondent stated that

Mr. Turkelson, my successor, it appears was reimbursed

$67.53 and directed $99.60 to go to Hugo’s Pizza and well

(sic) as directing the remaining balance of $1,813.00 to be

a “Transfer to General Fund to cover Chief Asst
Promotion” in violation of my understanding from Mr.
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Biscoe that such funds could not be used for salaries and
in apparent violation of MCR 49.153, 49.155, and 49.158.

Respondent’s representation in his answers to the Commission’s April 14,

2016, request for comments in response to question no. 12

misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s October 3, 2018, 28-

Day Letter, on page 5, respondent also stated that

7 was false and/or

Respondent’s representations,

6. Improper Reimbursements - 2012 Secretary

In response to a subpoena sent to the Lapeer County
Treasurer, it was discovered that the subsequent
administration, under Tim Turkelson, spent $67.60 for
Hugo’s Pizza (for police chief’s meeting and bar
association lunch). In addition, $1,813.00 was listed as a
«Transfer to General Fund per P.A. to cover Chiet Asst.
Promotion.” There is no argument that can be made that
that (sic) funding a staff member’s PROMOTION was for
“training.” One can only wonder where the rest of that
fund went after September 16, 2014. (Emphasis in
original)

Commission’s October 3, 2018, 28-Day Letter, were false and/or mi

In an April 25,2012, invoice vouc

Department seek

incurred for an April 25, 2012, «Staff Development Luncheon.”

94

in his January 14, 2019, answers to the
sleading.
Day Luncheon

her submitted to the Lapeer County Finance

ing $174.61, respondent represented that the expense was



580.

581.

582.

583.

584.

585.

Respondent’s representation in his April 25, 2012, invoice voucher was false
and misleading in that the expense was the LCP(Q’s celebration of
Secretary/Administrative  Assistant Day and not a staff development
luncheon.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 809 respondent stated that his representation in the
April 20, 2011, invoice voucher was not false and misleading.

Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 809 was false and
misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question nos. 807 and 808 respondent claimed that the April 25,
2012, luncheon was a staff development luncheon rather than the LCPO
celebration of the Secretary/Administrative Assistant Day.

Respondent’s representations in response to questions nos. 807 and 808 were

false and misleading.

7. Improper Reimbursements - 2012 Christmas Luncheon

In a December 17, 2012, invoice voucher submitted to the Lapeer County
Finance Department seeking a $180.66 reimbursement from Law

Enforcement Corporation Counsel Employee Training account no. 267 162
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657 010, respondent represented that the expense was incurred in connection
with the LCPO’s December 14, 2012, “training” session.

Respondent’s representation in the December 17, 2012, invoice voucher was
false and misleading.

In a telephone conversation with County Administrator/Controller John
Biscoe, conducted shortly after December 17, 2012, wherein Mr. Biscoe
questioned respondent as to the purpose of the December 14, 2012, luncheon,
respondent claimed that the LCPO’s December 14, 2012, luncheon was a
“training” session and not a holiday luncheon.

Respondent’s verbal representation to County Administrator/Controller
Biscoe was false and misleading.

During a November 15, 2017, deposition conducted in connection with
Konschuh v. Lapeer County, et al, Oakland County Circuit Court case nos.
2017-SC0045-SC and 2017-SC0046-SC, and in his January 14, 2019, answers
to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter in response to question nos. 909 and 910,
respondent represented that:

a. County Administrator John Biscoe never told respondent that the only way

the Christmas luncheon expense could be justified was if the luncheon was

for training;
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590.

591.

592.

593,

b. “The only thing that Mr. Biscoe told Judge Konschuh before he approved
the [Christmas, 2012] expensc was that Judge Konschuh may have to
answer questions by the Board of Commissioners or auditors about the
expense and that he should be prepared to do so;

Respondent’s testimony in the November 15, 2017, deposition and his

responses to the Commission’s inquiries in question no. 909 and 910, were

false and misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in

response to question no. 769, respondent claimed that during the December

2012 telephone conversation with Mr. Biscoe, Mr. Biscoe did not:

a. Question respondent whether the December 14, 2012, luncheon was a
holiday luncheon.

b. Did not advise respondent that a holiday luncheon expense could not be
submitted for reimbursement.

Respondent’s representations in response to question no. 769 were false and

misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in

response to question no. 771 respondent represented that during his December

2012 telephone conversation he did not represent to Mr. Biscoe that the
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594.

595.

596.

597.

598.

599.

December 14, 2012, luncheon was a “training” session rather than a holiday
luncheon.

Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 771 was false and
misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, n
response to question no. 909 respondent represented that County
Administrator Jobn Biscoe never told respondent that the only way the 2012
Christmas luncheon expense could be justified was if the luncheon was for
training.

Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 909 was false and
misleading.

In his January 14, 2019, answers 1o the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question no. 765, respondent represented that the December 12,
2012, luncheon was a training session.

Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 765 was false and
misleading.

8. False Statements — Corelogic Checks

In his March 4, 2019, answers to the Commission’s Supplemental 28-Day
Letter, in response to question no. 5, respondent represented that the word

«pROSECUTOR” was added to Corelogic Check no. 3000181215, changing
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600.

601.

602.

603.

604.

605.

606.

the name of the payee from “Lapeer, County of” to “Lapeer, County of —
PROSECUTOR? at the request and with the consent of Corelogic.
Respondent’s representation in response (o question no. 5 was false and/or
misleading.

In his March 4, 2019, answers to the Commission’s Supplemental 28-Day
Letter, in response to question no. 6, respondent represented that the word
“TREASURER” was added to Corelogic Check no. 3000181216, changing
the name of the payee from “Lapeer, County of” to “Lapeer, County of —
TREASURER?” at the request and with the consent of Corelogic.
Respondent’s representation in response to question no. 6 was false and/or
misleading.

9, False Statements - Donuts

During his tenure as the Lapecr County Prosecutor, respondent and the LCPO
prosecutors were rotated on a week-long “on-call” assignment.

The responsibility of the “on-call” APA was to handle any and all after-hours
questions/issues encountered by various Lapeer County police departments.
The LCPO APAs received approximately $300 in extra annual compensation

for their “on-call” duty.

Prior to November of 2012, on Fridays, the “on-call” prosecuting attorneys

purchased donuts for the LCPO staff.
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607.

608.

609.

610.

611.

Prior to November of 2012, receipts for donut purchases by the on-call
prosecuting attorneys were not submitted for reimbursement to the Lapeer
County Finance Department.

Beginning in November of 2012 and continuing until April 5, 2013,
respondent instructed the LCPO APAs to submit, and he himself submitted,
receipts for the Friday donut purchases to the Lapeer County Finance
Department for reimbursement from the Law Enforcement Corporation
Counsel Employee Training account no. 267 162 657 010.

Respondent signed and approved each invoice submitted to the Lapeer County
Finance Department for reimbursement for the donuts purchased between
November of 2012 through and including April 5, 2013.

In each invoice voucher respondent signed, approved, and/or submitted to the
Iapeer County Finance Department between November of 2012 through and
including April 5, 2013, respondent represented that the donut purchases were
for “training.”

The “training” representation in each invoice voucher respondent submitted
to the Lapeer County Finance Department between November of 2012

through and including April 5, 2013, was false and misleading.
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10. Improper Demeanor

612. In his January 14, 2019, answers to the Commission’s 28-Day Letter, in
response to question nos. 828, 832, 833, 837, and 840 respondent stated that
his October 5, 2016, encounter with Mrs. Bonnie Oyster and her son, Samuel
Oyster, “was cordial” and that he did not:

4. Use a confrontational and angry tone of voice when speaking to Mrs.

Opyster and/or her son;
b. Display an aggressive, belligerent, and/or arrogant attitude towards Mrs.
Opyster and/or her son;
c. Refuse to accept Mrs. Oystet’s statements that she did not know who had
removed the “Richardson for Circuit Judge” campaign lawn sign;
d. Use any profanities during his contact with Mrs. Oyster and/or her son,
Samuel Oyster.
613. Respondent’s representations in responses to question nos. 828, 832, 833, 837,
and 840 were false and misleading.
Respondent’s conduct, as described above in paragraphs 1 through and
including 615, constitutes:
a. Misconduct in office, as defined by the Michigan Constitution of 1963,

as amended, Article 6, Section 30 and MCR 9.205;
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Conduct clearly prejudicial to the administration of justice, as defined
by the Michigan Constitution of 1963, as amended, Article 6, Section
30, and MCR 9.205(B);

Conduct in violation of the standards imposed on members of the bar
as a condition of the privilege to practice law, contrary to MCR
9.103(A);

Conduct that is prejudicial to the proper administration of justice,
contrary to MCR 9.104(1);

Conduct that exposes the legal profession or the courts to obloquy,
contempt, censure, or reproach, contrary to MCR 9.104(2);

Conduct that is contrary to justice, ethics, honesty, or good morals, in
violation of MCR 9.104(3);

Conduct that violates the standards or rules of professional
responsibility adopted by the Supreme Court, in violation of MRPC 8.4,
8.4(c) and MCR 9.104(4);

Conduct that violates a criminal law of a state or of the United States,
an ordinance, or tribal law pursuant to MCR 2.615, contrary to MCR
9.104(5), including but not limited to MCL 750.175 (embezzlement by

a public official over $50), MCL 750.485 (Public official — failure to

102



k.

account for public money), and MCL 750249 (Uttering and
Publishing).

Knowing misrepresentation of any facts or circumstances surrounding
a request for investigation or complaint, contrary to MCR 9.104(6);
Knowingly providing false and/or misleading statements and/or
representations to an officer of the Michigan State Police during a
criminal investigation;

Conduct involving fraud, deceit, or intentional misrepresentations,
contrary to MCR 9.205(B);

Conduct involving intentional misrepresentations and misleading
statements to the Judicial Tenure Commission, contrary to MCR
9.205(B),

Failure to establish, maintain, enforce and personally observe high
standards of conduct so the integrity and independence of the judiciary
may be preserved, contrary to Michigan Code of Judicial Conduct
(“MCJC”) Canon 1;

Irresponsible or improper conduct which erodes public confidence in

the judiciary, in violation of MCJC Canon 2(A);
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Conduct involving impropriety and the appearance of impropriety, in
violation of MCJC Canon 2(A);

F-ailure to respect and observe the law, contrary to MCJC Canon 2(B);
Failure to act in a manner that promotes public confidence in the
integrity and impartiality of the judiciary, contrary to MCJC Canon
2(B);

Failure to treat people with courtesy and respect, contrary to MCJC
Canon 2(B);

Use of the prestige of office to advance personal business interests or
those of others, contrary to MCJC Canon 2(C);

Failure to be faithful to the law and maintain professional competence
in it, contrary to MCJC Canon 3(A)(1);

Failure to disqualify, contrary to MCJC Canon 3(C) and MCR
2.003(C);

Failure to disclose possible grounds for disqualification, contrary to
MCJC Canon 3(C) and MCR 2.003;

Public endorsement of a candidate for nonjudicial office, contrary to

MCIJC Canon 7;
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X. Conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, misrepresentation, or
violation of the criminal law, where such conduct reflects adversely on
the lawyer’s honesty, trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer, in violation
of MRPC 8.4(b);

y. A pattern of misconduct in violation of the Code of Judicial Conduct.

JUDICIAL TENURE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

3034 W. Grand Boulevard, Suite 8-450
Detroit, Michigan 48202

,

Sy
Lynn A. Helland (P32192)
Examiner

%ﬁwﬁ U O sl

1et N.S. Ryn1ef/€P/34594)
Co Exammel

Dated: March 18, 2019
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APPENDIX A

Civil Cases

CASE NO.

CASE NAME

15-048845-CB

MIG Molding LLC v B&M Ultrasonics, et al

15-049049-DO

Dana Mariotti v Jay Anthony Mariotti

15-049178-DM

Kara Marie Terhlen v Nathaniel Christopher Greenfield

15-049249-DS

Heather Nicole McAndrew v Dwayne Jeffrey Leach

15-049257-DO

Angela Marie McMillan v Daniel Lewis McMillan, 11

15-049333-DM

Jenifer Sue Sayen v Jason Anthony Sayen

15-049335-DO

Dale FEugene Eash v Angela Sue Hach

16-049435-DO

Gary Arthur Hickey v Monica Lynn Hickey

16-049460-DM

John Tierney v Nichole Tierney

16-049470-DO

I.uz Rita De La Fuente v Martin De La Fuente

16-049503-DM

Daniel Dean Green v Trinity Renee Green

16-049703-DO

Deirdra Teresa Pauley v Leo Charles Pauley

16-049784-DO

Donald A. Tacks v Arielle Cruz Yacks

16-049833-DO

Cheryl A. Quinn v John D. Quinn

16-049886-DO

Gerald William Braun v Renee M. Braun

16-050209-DO

Sandra Jean Broecker v Walter Creighton Broecker

16-050211-DO

Debra Gail Hartman v Kurt Raymond Hartman

16-050243-DM

Leonard Douglas Watkins v Jennifer Louise Watkins

16-050295-PH

James Richardson v Robert Rugenstein

16-050309-DO

Patricia Ann Isenberg v John Richard Isenberg

16-050352-DO

Johanna Denise Geisenhaver v Anthony Joseph Sleeper

16-050353-DZ.

Cynthia Harmanson v Shawn McNamara

16-050429-DC

Brandon Dalton Hetchler v Kayla M. Barczewski

17-050503-DO

Connie Jean Provost v Peter Blazejezyk

17-050812-DO

Gloria Janette Cedillo v Rosendo Cedillo, Jr.

17-050861-DO

William C. Lapes v Gail Ellen Lapes

17-051190-PP

Cassie L. Honsinger v David A Honsinger

17-051305-DM

Josette Marre Morales v Michael Anthony Morales

18-051569-PP

Angela Kristy Vettraino v John Howard Keene, Jr.

18-051681-DM

Gregory Mark Thorman v Hollie Jean Thorman

18-051756-DC

James Henry Hintz, Jr. v Kristen Michelle Botello

18-051854-DO

Grace Elizabeth Walker v Robert Wayne Walker

18-051530-DO

Kip Aaron Barnard v Tara Lyn Barnard

18-052026-DM

Drew Theodore Dodds v Krista Lee Dodds




18-052079-DM

Jennifer A. Bertram v Robert C. Bertram

18-052081-DO

Edmund Rubicz v Renee Marie Rubicz

| 18-052126-CH

Angela Vettraino v John Howard Keene, Jr.

Criminal Cases

CASE NO. CASE NAME

15-1815-FY People of the State of Michigan v Clifford William Edwards
16-2335-FY People of the State of Michigan v Kayla Barczewskl
16-2575-FT People of the State of Michigan v Michael L, Pomeroy, Jr.
17-0090-1'Y Pcople of the State of Michigan v Danie] Stuart Chevrier
17-0220-FD Pcople of the State of Michigan v Richard Anthony Page
17-0375-FY Pcople of the State of Michigan v Ryan Wadsworth
17-0385-FY People of the State of Michigan v Brandon Bryan Krajniak
17-0845-SD People of the State of Michigan v James Bernard Daniels
17-0920-FY People of the State of Michigan v Rebecca Woberts







APPENDIX B

CASE NUMBER

CASE NAME

2015-2454-GC

Daniel Mein, Susanne M. Mein v Daniel Alan Nash

2016-49893-CH

Insurance Restoration v Kthryn A. Smith, et al.

2016-2814-GC

Aaron D. Rider and & Kelly v Rich Moshier

2016-1915-LT

Daniel G. Gerlach dba Gerlachs Bowling v Kayla Cowell

2016-1663-LT

Donald Daley v Orville Ganstine and Dolores Ganstine

2016-1651-LT

Focus Real Estate v Pete Goodrich and All Occupants

2016-1650-1.T

Focus Real Estate v Gail Corbin and All Occupants







APPENDIX C

Felony cases

CASE NUMBER CASE NAME

15-1815-FY People of the State of Michigan v Edwards, Clifford
15-2410-FY People of the State of Michigan v Walker, Cody
16-0920-I'Y People of the State of Michigan v Carey, Shelli
16-1070-FY People of the State of Michigan v George, Dylan
16-1270-FY People of the State of Michigan v Usrey, Sierra
16-1285-FY People of the State of Michigan v Basman, Michael
16-1315-FY People of the State of Michigan v Wyrembelski, Stacey
16-1395-FY People of the State of Michigan v Griewahn, Timothy
16-1685-FY People of the State of Michigan v Kreger-Mclntyre, Cris
16-1730-FY People of the State of Michigan v Markeal Matteson
16-1820-FY People of the State of Michigan v Pratt, J acob
16-1960-FY People of the State of Michigan v Papineau; Alan
16-2035-FY People of the State of Michigan v Langley, Jason
16-2130-IY People of the State of Michigan v Knight, Daniel
16-2150-FY People of the State of Michigan v Strength, Lori
16-2220-FY People of the State of Michigan v Brashear, Mitchell
16-2335-FY People of the State of Michigan v Barczewski, Kayla
16-2405-FY People of the State of Michigan v Helzer, Andrew
16-2410-FY People of the State of Michigan v Schumaker, Austin
16-2445-FY People of the State of Michigan v Wiel, Linda
16-2500-FY People of the State of Michigan v Terlecki, Heather
17-2515-FY People of the State of Michigan v Conley, Patrick
16-2525-FY People of the State of Michigan v McElroy, Henry
16-2565-FY People of the State of Michigan v Zeleney, Zach
16-2575-FT People of the State of Michigan v Pomoroy, Michael
16-2585-FY People of the State of Michigan v Pruitt, Eric
16-2595-FY People of the State of Michigan v Adams, Carrie
16-2600-FY People of the State of Michigan v Greenwald, Michael
17-0205-FY People of the State of Michigan v Ramirez, Tony
17-0230-FY People of the State of Michigan v Carter, Heather
17-0250-FY People of the State of Michigan v Duddy, Debra
17-0050-FY People of the State of Michigan v Sneed, William




CASE NUMBER CASE. NAME

17-0065-FY People of the State of Michigan v Gurd, Rodney
17-0090-FY People of the State of Michigan v Chevrier, Daniel
17-0100-FY People of the State of Michigan v Brashear, Mitchell
17-0135-FY People of the State of Michigan v Wilson, John
17-0140-FY People of the State of Michigan v Ban, Rita
17-0175-FY People of the State of Michigan v Edwards, Gary
17-0180-FY People of the State of Michigan v Wilson, John
17-0205-IF'Y People of the State of Michigan v Ramirez, Tony
17-0220-FY People of the State of Michigan v Page, Richard
17-0230-FY People of the State of Michigan v Carter, Heather
17-0250-FY People of the State of Michigan v Duddy, Debra
17-0270-FY People of the State of Michigan v Bengry, Casey
17-0275-FY People of the State of Michigan v Gracz, Colleen
17-0290-FY People of the State of Michigan v Fairbrother, Adam
17-0320-FY People of the State of Michigan v Shank, Brian
17-0365-FY People of the State of Michigan v Sweeney, Joey
17-0385-FY People of the State of Michigan v Krajniak, Brandon
17-0390-FY People of the State of Michigan v Denryter, Eric
17-0415-I'Y People of the State of Michigan v Stiles, Crystal
17-0420-FY People of the State of Michigan v Taliaferro, James
17-0460-FY People of the State of Michigan v Maudlin, Seth
17-0485-FY People of the State of Michigan v Hunt, Ronald
17-0655-FY People of the State of Michigan v Harko, Mike
17-0675-FY People of the State of Michigan v Birchfield, Eric
17-0680-FT People of the State of Michigan v Ranaldi, John
17-0700-FY People of the State of Michigan v Davis, Marlon
17-0705-FY People of the State of Michigan v Kellogg, Kevin
17-0755-FY People of the State of Michigan v Moore, Nigul
17-0765-FY People of the State of Michigan v Montoya, Teresa
17-0850-FY People of the State of Michigan v Crespo, Jessica
17-0860-FY People of the State of Michigan v White, Marco
17-0865-FY People of the State of Michigan v Lentz, Robert
17-0915-FY People of the State of Michigan v Clark, Robert
17-0920-FY People of the State of Michigan v Roberts, Rebecca
17-0925-FY People of the State of Michigan v Sweet, Tamara
17-1000-F'Y People of the State of Michigan v Fischer, Christopher
17-1015-FY People of the State of Michigan v Cron, Aaron
17-1020-FY People of the State of Michigan v Cron, Aaron
17-1025-FY People of the State of Michigan v Mowery, Chad
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Misdemeanor cases

CASE NUMBER

CASE NAME

13-1725; 13-1725A

People of the State of Michigan v Bryan, Scott

13-2635

People of the State of Michigan v Verstraete, Kristina

13-2760

People of the State of Michigan v Jones, Natasha

14-0815; 13-0815A

People of the State of Michigan v Clark, Corey

14-1625; 14-1625A

People of the State of Michigan v Pitts, Lashari

14-1965

People of the State of Michigan v Bickell, John

14-2835 People of the State of Michigan v Pollard, Jquasia
15-1080 People of the State of Michigan v Blankeship, Mark
15-0370 People of the State of Michigan v Churchill, William
15-0450 People of the State of Michigan v Rogers, James
15-0490 People of the State of Michigan v Arbaugh, Michael
15-1060 People of the State of Michigan v Swistoski, Joel
15-1600 People of the State of Michigan v Pierce,l Trevor
15-1710 Pcople of the State of Michigan v Huby, Grant
15-2335 People of the State of Michigan v Gozowski, Timothy
15-2725 People of the State of Michigan v Church, James
15-2730 People of the State of Michigan v Harless, Roger
16-0170 People of the State of Michigan v Gabryel, Eric

16-0355; 16-0355A

People of the State of Michigan v Dukes, Aaron

16-0740; 16-0740A

Peoplé of the State of Michigan v Patterson, Patrick

16-0875 People of the State of Michigan v Nakoneczny, Sheri
16-0990 People of the State of Michigan v Tollison, Christpher
16-1015 People of the State of Michigan v Real Deal Delivery
16-1045 People of the State of Michigan v Tyler, Jordan

16-1180 People of the State of Michigan v Freeland, Aaron
16-1185 People of the State of Michigan v Ortega, Victoria
16-1195 People of the State of Michigan v Underhill, Adam
16-1330 People of the State of Michigan v Decker, Kendra
16-1350 Pcople of the State of Michigan v Morin, Krystal
16-1555 People of the State of Michigan v Senkowski, Samantha

16-1600; 16-1600A

People of the State of Michigan v Long, Eric

16-1650; 16-1650A

People of the State of Michigan v Hinton, Rachel

16-1660

Pcople of the State of Michigan v June, Alexander

16-1680; 16-1680A

People of the State of Michigan v Duco, Christopher

16-1725

People of the State of Michigan v Ferguson, Jenna
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CASE NUMBER

CASE NAME

16-1805; 16-1805A

People of the State of Michigan v Escalante-Molina

16-1955; 16-1955A

People of the State of Michigan v McHale, Thomas

16-2105

People of the State of Michigan v Adair, Jesse

16-2115 People of the State of Michigan v Vanderlip, Mark
16-2210 People of the State of Michigan v Lapensee, Brandon
16-2260 People of the State of Michigan v Willbanks, Felicia
16-2295 People of the State of Michigan v Huston, Krystal
16-2300 People of the State of Michigan v Miller, Derick
16-2330 People of the State of Michigan v Bowerson, Carlee
16-2345 People of the State of Michigan v Caughel, Angela
16-2355 People of the State of Michigan v Houston, Stefan
16-2375 People of the State of Michigan v Abbey, Nathan
16-2395 People of the State of Michigan v Roper, Denise

16-2400; 16-2400A

People of the State of Michigan v Alexander, Kevin

16-2420; 16-2420A

People of the State of Michigan v Flores, Johnathan

16-2425; 16-2425A

People of the State of Michigan v Houghtaling, Andress

16-2465

People of the State of Michigan v Helzer, Robert

16-2485; 16-2485A

People of the State of Michigan v Franzel, Cory

16-2505-A,B,C

People of the State of Michigan v Evick, Jordan

16-2535; 16-2535A

People of the State of Michigan v Hart, Kevin

16-2545; 16-2545A

People of the State of Michigan v Emrick, Gregory

16-2550 People of the State of Michigan v Osborne, Joseph
16-2580 People of the State of Michigan v Barker, Kimerly
16-2590 People of the State of Michigan v Schell, Amanda
16-2610 People of the State of Michigan v Kiel, Allison
17-0005 People of the State of Michigan v Rosebush, Ramsey
17-0010 People of the State of Michigan v Agrusso, Michael
16-2615 People of the State of Michigan v Roberts, Rodney
17-0030 Pcople of the State of Michigan v Hanna, Misti
17-0040 People of the State of Michigan v Hernandez, Richard
17-0045 People of the State of Michigan v Coleman, Kristen
17-0105 People of the State of Michigan v Parallel Construction

17-0110; 17-0110A

People of the State of Michigan v Miners, Daniel

17-0115; 17-0115A

People of the State of Michigan v Gangloff Industries

17-0120

People of the State of Michigan v Brotzke, Trevor

17-0125

People of the State of Michigan v Kirby, Autumn

17-0145

People of the State of Michigan v Xaypachanh, Kyle

17-0150; 17-0150A

People of the State of Michigan v Warner, Jay

17-0155

People of the State of Michigan v Hardy, Robert
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CASE NUMBER

CASE NAME

17-0185; 17-0185A

People of the State of Michigan v Pomeroy, Mitchell

17-0190 People of the State of Michigan v Polansky, Amanda
17-0195; 17-0195A People of the State of Michigan v Venner, Glen
17-0200 People of the State of Michigan v Knox, Ryan
17-0210 People of the State of Michigan v Lang, Gage
17-0225 People of the State of Michigan v Raymond, Chris
17-0235 People of the State of Michigan v Ulrich, Todd
17-0240; 17-0240A People of the State of Michigan v Sanders, Angela
17-0245 People of the State of Michigan v Rojas/Juan-De-Dios
17-0255 People of the State of Michigan v Proctor, Dallas
17-0360 People of the State of Michigan v Cloutier, J effery
17-0265 People of the State of Michigan v Mayville, J ustin
17-0280 People of the State of Michigan v Bray, Terra
17-0285 People of the State of Michigan v Nowyorkas, Chad
17-0305 People of the State of Michigan v Kowalewski, Nicolas
17-0310 People of the State of Michigan v Dunn, Ryan
17-0315 People of the State of Michigan v Helzer, Andrew
17-0325 People of the State of Michigan v Reed, Jamie
17-0330 People of the State of Michigan v Tarig, Magdalena
17-0335 People of the State of Michigan v Knibbe, Nicholas
17-0340 People of the State of Michigan v Elwell, John
17-0345 People of the State of Michigan v Kramer, Katrina
17-0355 People of the State of Michigan v Rise, Dawn
17-0360 People of the State of Michigan v Manko, Jacob
17-0370 People of the State of Michigan v Pruitt, Ryan
17-0380 People of the State of Michigan v Little, Adrianna
17-0400 People of the State of Michigan v Hall, Russell
17-0405 People of the State of Michigan v McTaggart, Barbara
17-0425 People of the State of Michigan v Vlahos, George
17-0435 People of the State of Michigan v Schirmer, Garet
17-0440 People of the State of Michigan v Klingler, Ryan
17-0445 People of the State of Michigan v Clark, Matthew
17-0460 People of the State of Michigan v Maudlin, Seth
17-0470 People of the State of Michigan v Rucks, Brittany
17-0475 People of the State of Michigan v Rumball, Adam
17-0480 Pcople of the State of Michigan v Dukes, Leshawndra
17-0490 People of the State of Michigan v Jobson, Austin
17-0495 People of the State of Michigan v South, Rion
17-0500 People of the State of Michigan v Eldridge, Vicki
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CASE NUMBER CASE NAME

17-0510 People of the State of Michigan v Jackson, Angel
17-0520 People of the State of Michigan v Eubank, Dana
17-0525 People of the State of Michigan v Mills, Todd

17-0535 People of the State of Michigan v MacGillivray, Jeff
17-0540 People of the State of Michigan v Corwin, Clarence
17-0545 People of the State of Michigan v Markham, Breyonna
17-0560 People of the State of Michigan v Bird, Gary

17-0570 People of the State of Michigan v Minto, Kurt

17-0575 People of the State of Michigan v Edwards, Brett
17-0580 People of the State of Michigan v Howell, Rodney
17-0585 People of the State of Michigan v Radzialowski, Rochele
17-0590 People of the State of Michigan v Houston, lan
17-0595 People of the State of Michigan v Coffel, David
17-0620 People of the State of Michigan v Ferguson, Alexis
17-0630 Pcople of the State of Michigan v Dubose, Jordyn
17-0635 People of the State of Michigan v Scott, Anthony
17-0640 People of the State of Michigan v Barek, Deborah
17-0645 People of the State of Michigan v Samfilippo, Emerson
17-0650 People of the State of Michigan v Duby, Lana

17-0660 People of the State of Michigan v Fletemier, Gary
17-0670 People of the State of Michigan v Tenbush, Timothy
17-0690 People of the State of Michigan v Ferriby, Christopher
17-0695 People of the State of Michigan v Hagos, Efrem

17-0715; 17-0715A

People of the State of Michigan v Turner, Nathan

17-0720; 17-0720A

People of the State of Michigan v Price, Sean

17-0725 People of the State of Michigan v Triplett, Tracy
17-0730 People of the State of Michigan v Vitrano, Justin
17-0735 People of the State of Michigan v Rodriguez, Raul
17-0745 Pcople of the State of Michigan v VanMeter, Dylan
17-0550 Pcople of the State of Michigan v Kreiner-Smith, Jill
17-0555 Pcople of the State of Michigan v Helzer, Robert
17-0760 People of the State of Michigan v Romzek, Cole
17-0685 People of the State of Michigan v Logan, Joshua
17-0770 People of the State of Michigan v Watkins, Brooklyn
17-0775 People of the State of Michigan v Miller, April
17-0780 People of the State of Michigan v Morgan, Cody
17-0790 People of the State of Michigan v Wansedel, Joshua
17-0795 People of the State of Michigan v Schannon, Neea
17-0800 People of the State of Michigan v Sims, Rachael
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CASE NUMBER

CASE NAME

17-0805; 17-0805A

People of the State of Michigan v Kwong, Chon

17-0810 People of the State of Michigan v LaForge, Roy
17-0820 People of the State of Michigan v Stemple, Caleb
17-0825 People of the State of Michigan v Southards, David
17-0845 Pcople of the State of Michigan v Daniels, James
17-0855 People of the State of Michigan v Kellogg, Kevin
17-0875 People of the State of Michigan v Snyder, Andrew
17-0880 People of the State of Michigan v Hibbert, Keith
17-0890 People of the State of Michigan v Briseno, Carlos
17-0930 People of the State of Michigan v Barriteau, Joslyn







STATE OF MICHIGAN
IN THE SUPREME COURT

IN THE MATTER OF:
MSC No. 159088
Hon. Byron J. Konschuh
40™ Circuit Court
255 Clay Street
Lapeer, MI 48066

/
Michigan Judicial Tenue Commission Collins Einhorn Farrell PC
Lynn A. Helland (P32192) Donald D. Campbell (P-43088)
Margaret N.S. Rynier (P34594) Attorney for Respondent
3034 West Grand Blvd. 4000 Town Center, 9™ Floor
Ste. §-450 Southfield, MI 48075
Detroit, Michigan 48202 (248) 355-4141
(313)875-5110
PROOF OF SERVICE
STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) SS

COUNTY OF WAYNE )

CASIMIR J. SWASTEK, being duly sworn, states: I am employed with the Judicial
Tenure Commission. On March 18, 2019, I served a copy of Amended Formal Complaint

No. 100, and this Proof of Service upon Donald D. Campbell, Esq., Counsel for
Respondent, by first class mail the same clearly addressed as follows:

Collins Einhorn Farrell, PC
Donald D. Campbell
4000 Town Center, 9" Floor

Southfield, MI 48075



and plainly bearing thereon the return address of the Judicial Tenure Commission.

W)/ﬁm

CASIMIR WASTEK

Subscribed and sworn to before me
This 19th day of March, 2019

JOYCE A FORD-COOPER . |
Wﬁfﬁdé/ Notary Public, State of Michigah
My Comiﬁzg?orﬁ Ef Chigng
FORD-COOPER Acling in the County of WS
NO ARY PUBLIC, OAKL COUNTY,
ACTING IN WAYNE COUNTY, MI
My Commission Expires: February 3, 2020




